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Annual results for the year ended 31 March 2011

e Revenue

e Profit before income tax

e Asat 31 March 2011
Shareholders’ fund

e Earnings per share

Revenue (HK$’000)

Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$’000)

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents)
Proposed special bonus dividend per share (HK cents)
Net asset value (HK$’000)

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Write off of trade receivables

Fair value change on derivative financial instruments
Revaluation surplus on buildings

Share option costs

Finance costs

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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HK$388 m 3.88{Z#E T
HK$24 m 0.24{Z#B T
HK$288 m 2.881Zi8
HK5.8 cents 5.8/l
2011 2010
—2——-F —E-BF
(restated)

(E5)

388,240 446,910
17,498 44,231
5.8 14.7

3.0 3.0

2.0 -
288,460 236,279
2011 2010
—E——F —E-%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THET
(restated)

(E%)

388,240 446,910
(236,281) (279,824)
151,959 167,086
1,988 807
(64,072) (61,585)
(58,228) (55,454)
(5,345) -
- (822)

- 3,009

(2,047) =
(589) (653)

e
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Annual results for the year ended 31 March 2011

EZ2011F3A31 HEE WS

2011 2010
—F——F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THERT T
(restated)
(E%)
Profit before income tax RSB AR F 23,666 52,888
Income tax expense SR (6,168) (8,657)
Profit for the year FERR 17,498 44,231
Other comprehensive income Hfr2 s
Exchange gain on translation of MEB IR N A
financial statements of foreign operations MEREAWLAES 829 326
Surplus on revaluation of Wl E fh s
properties held for own use 42,718 7,191
Tax effect relating to components of other comprehensive income Hih & RS 2 RIS 2,487 (907)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax FEHMEERE (BRBRE) 46,034 6,610
Total comprehensive income for the year FELHEKESLT 63,532 50,841
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the equity holders of the REARNBNEEZFE AN SN ITEZ R
Company during the year EREF
- Basic — B 5.8 cents &l 14.7 cents &l
— Diluted —RE N/ATEA N/ATEA

A e. bon holdings limited H®BTERER L A



s

r"”_ A i

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FTERSE B

Dear Shareholders

We present the Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2011. This has been one of the
challenging years and a year of consolidation for Group in its 35 years of establishment. The
global relaxation of credits, such as Quantitative Easing Il in the United States, and the flamboyant
economic growth in China cause further influx of funds into Hong Kong, which continues to fuel
the upsurge of the property price, in particular the luxurious housing sector.

On the other hand, various measures have been introduced to cool down the property market
with an intention to provide more affordable units in the private housing sector, including the
increase in supply of land, extra stamp duties on speculative short-term property holdings and
tightening up the mortgage ratio for overseas investors. All these aim to assist local citizens
acquiring their homes. While we believe that these measures may affect the property market in
general, they are unlikely to cause significant impacts on the luxurious housing sector, we shall
continue to be vigilant in assessing how fiscal policies and local environment may affect our
business in order to formulate the best strategies to meet these challenges.

Meanwhile, our retail division has recorded growth, our retail showrooms and outlets are located
in non-core districts, we shall take measures to control the rise in expenses, particularly rental
increase. Our operation in the mainland has gathered momentum, with the latest addition of our
interior design division and our strategic position in Shanghai, we expect further development
in this market after the opening of our flagship showroom in late 2011. As previously discussed,
our bridgehead in Shanghai has successfully enabled us to establish in the Eastern region, while
we have spouted projects in other parts of China, such as Shenyang and Guangzhou. The Group,
armed with its ability to supply quality products with local project management capitalised
previously in our projects Lujiazui, is in the process of negotiation for other projects in the Mainland.

The management, would like to thank the support of our staff in meeting challenges this year
and those lying ahead. Most of important of all, we need to thank the support from you - our
Shareholders.

TSE Sun Fat, Henry i # %
Chairman *E
24 June 2011 —E——FXA=+MWmAH

BURE :

BIMREBE_Z-——F=ZA=1t-ALFEFHKR TEAS/LEH BE-FHEZL
FEAMEENE_LEARTLER - EALFERSBEARRAL LN LT - H3h
SEMRBFLLA > BRADRE S MAKARL=THAF  HERBEFRK > ABR
ARETEA °

SR BEBRANTEMFHRAANEEHENMBELRD  SXE—RINEETEY
WseEs) > BEEMLHEN  BERSF2MLBRRANDEY  REESHREE
ZRBRY  UMBABTREERER - RINMEZEREENETHEREW - AMX
SETINRER  AEAERITARF 2V BRBERERECLFRAENEAZEW
FAEHAE RN R Ll BB TR o

AEAZELSEBRELER  BIERTEEHIMULTEROBLBE » MEE
fSETHEEE BOEESEAEW -MERLSHERR  BEEATLEHE 2R
TULEREERE MEELBZEMELTTHFERS  RNREERLFKE-S R
BeAEAELBRBICHMAECRISAKAMAER TR REE Mt X (208
BARSM)  ARRSESHMEH 2NE - FNBT EBHXENE H#ARLRSmER
4% SEARBARHMERRTAE -

EERRURGEALTAINEZE D REBFRBRARNEHELE  REENE
RRBEMRANEENZE  REALEHERE

o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBEWLS SN

The following discussion provides information and contribution to revenue,
operating profit, profit after tax, financial condition, liquidity and capital
expenditure of the Group.

Result of Operations

We announce that an operating profit of HK$23.7 million (2010: HK$52.9 million,
restated), a decrease of 55%, while profit after tax amounts to HK$17.5 million
(2010: HK$44.2 million, restated), a decrease of 60% with the Group turnover
amounted to HK$388.2 million (2010: HK$446.9 million), a decrease of 13%.
Our borrowings has reduced by HK$19.7 million to HK$41.2 million as detailed
in latter paragraphs. It is noted that as a result of adopting certain Accounting
Standards, corresponding figures in previous years have been restated.

As discussed in our Interim Report, Hong Kong Government policies such as
additional stamp duties, lowering mortgage ratio on properties and restriction on
mortgage loans to overseas investors result in lowering the volume of speculative
apartment sales (both primary and secondary markets), however, the price
remains at high level. As a result, our sales eased off by 13%, we shall monitor
closely how further fiscal policies by the Government and the change in interest
rates may have on the property market.

A charge of HK$2.0 million is provided against the current year earnings for
the issuance of share options to senior management for their loyalty and
contributions as announced on 27 January 2011. These options, if exercised, will
result in additional shares in circulation in 2012.

On 30 March 2011, we announced that the Group has at last come to a
settlement with one of the customers of our subsidiary in a long outstanding
litigation. The settlement included the cancellation of legal claims of HK$6.1
million against our subsidiary while the Group wrote off an amount of HK$5.3
million which was in dispute since 2001.

Despite the lowering turnover, we are able to maintain the overall gross margin of
39% (2010: 37 %) while the administrative expenses increased by 5% to HK$58.2
million (2010: HK$55.5 million, restated) falling into line with the general inflation
in Hong Kong.

A e. bon holdings limited f#MBTRBER L A

AT RHEBEXAEARERM - RERR

AFXZEHR

ZFEMN  RREEF - MBIRR - R3

= =
25 5

AEAFXBLERT23,666,0008T(=F—FF 52,888,000 E5) » BkiE N
55% @ MERBEEFN 717,498,000 T (=ZF—FF : 44,231,000 T » E5l) » B
18 7960% @ ANEHE 388,240,000 T (=5 —FF : 446,910,000 ) » B
EERD13% o REF 2B R 19,684,000/ T 41,181,000 7T » #1ETFT XA
B BTRPETHUEE - BOZEHR 2 BERED -

EM-Z--FEZzHHLAHREEL  BBRF 2 —RIIR AL 2 Hik - WHISNED
B REZBABRRASBHIRAENEBRAIERRIBT (BE-FR=-FH
PIWREDS  AMBNOLTEM - ELFREEFTRI13% - AREAEZR T BEEG
MU BEERARER  HITENRBET 2 o

TZ2-——F-A-+tR FRALHAETSREBZAARTHRN - USRS
REBMFRAM - ZMRNZ A F{E2,047,0008TERALFEZREMBERN © il iz
MERRRBTE  ARATTIMNBEEFEZRBERZHELEREM -

T-2-—-F=A=+R BMNEHAFKASEMELATA(ZMBELRA N 2 —BEF#
REEZFW  BRMN - BREFEFBEENZME LR JE1Y26,148,0007 T & 7
R MAKEAT HBE2001FRIEN 2 EH5,333,0008 T/FHEKRE

REAEAZELFR D » EFNRMEFTION(ZZT—FF 1 37%) ' THIAZNEE
B EFH5%ZE58,228,0008 T (ZF—FF : 55,454,0008 7w ) o
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The acquisition of our office property in 2008 shielded the Group against
increase in office rent, the property which acquired at HK$34.2 million has
been appreciated and revalued at HK$60.0 million as at 31 March 2011 by an
independent professional valuer. The increase in advertising and promotion for
launching new products, and other inflationary increase in expenses caused a
4% rise of selling and distribution expenses to HK$64.1 million (2010: HK$61.6
million, restated).

Wholesales/Retails

Our retail operations record a growth in sales value to HK$90.3 million (2010:
HK$83.3 million), since our retail outlets and showrooms are located in non-core
districts of prime shopping areas for consumer goods, we only experienced a
moderate increase in rental expenses, and with the cash-based retail income, the
Group has been able to maintain strong cash flow with reduced leverage.

In our wholesales division, the sales dropped due to the lower completion rate
of constructions in response to the Government policies. Meanwhile, the sales
operation in China represents 18% (2010: 17%) of the Group turnover, we have
stepped out of Shanghai and extended to Shenyang, we intend to set up further
subsidiaries and showrooms to cope with the expansion in the Mainland, working
in parallel for building projects of established property developers, our trading
partners in Hong Kong.

Financial Resources and Liquidity

The Group continues to expand its business lines and opportunities while
adhering a prudent financial management policy, the current ratio and quick
ratio are 2.52 (2010: 2.50, restated) and 1.66 (2010: 1.68, restated) respectively
while the cash and bank balances amounted to HK$44.0 million (2010: HK$51.9
million). The Group gearing ratio (the ratio of total liabilities to the sum of total
liabilities and equity) reduced to 27% (2010: 31%) as at 31 March 2011. The
interest-bearing borrowings of the group reduced to HK$41.2 million (2010:
HK$60.9 million) including trade finance such as trust receipt loan for imports.

RERTFZFF/)\FELL34,200,0008 7w  EFRMEZHYLBER  LEREREF
BHEESHTRTR2EW  MBBMIEENZRE  ZYLEAE  FZE-——&5=8
=+—BZEH#{E7160,000,0008 T - HTFH - RBEARRT &REZ ML
B BERDERARMEAZ64,072,0008 T (=ZFE—FF : 61,585,000
T B e

e/ 2&

AEAZZTELFEME,276,0008 T (=F—FF : 83,256,000/ 7L) - HTRE
EREFIEYNLFEZOBLER  ROZISRERGESANEE  HEBEIE
B e MEBELFHRENBT AEANASR - BAOMBE o

ATABNEEZEREELTREKF - FHRBEZZHNUDT  FAEAZHRLFTE
AEEZHEE  ELFRFTY® - AW 2EANERLSMERI 2 WS SF L
Fz18%(ZB—FF 1 17%) - FHAKA P H EBRFRLHE  NESLST R - itk
HENFREZHEARARKIE S5XBARBEEANERRE -

MHERERDEE

REREAHT BUSEEN 2% DEFFECMSERRE R ERE LR
PHN252(ZFE—FF 1250 EY)R1.66(=ZF—FF :1.68 ' E¥) MT=F
——FZA=+-BAzUERMBITLEHNF43,984,0008 T (=F—F%F : 51,918,000
Br) FZE——§=ZA=1+—0  FERARTAGLEER(HAGETAENAGKER
ERFRABMER)TRE2I% (ZE—FF :31%) - AEH2BEEREATRZ
41,181,000 Tt (=2 —F £ : 60,865,00087x) ' EAEEAOGREBERRERS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
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The Group has adopted a prudent hedging policy against foreign exchange risk
on imported products, such conservative treasury policy enables us to have a
gain in exchange despite the continuous devaluation of Hong Kong dollars which
is pledged with United States Dollars. The borrowing and cash balances are
primarily denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, the foreign exchange risk in this
aspect is insignificant.

People
As at 31 March 2011, our loyal workforce remained at 173 (2010: 173).

During the year, share options have been granted to certain employees to
encourage and to provide incentives or rewards for the contribution to the
business success.

Future Prospects

Towards the end of financial year 2011, we are saddened by the catastrophic
earthquake and risk of radiation in Japan, though this may further strengthen
the position of Hong Kong being the regional financial centre, when institutions
will establish their offices here which might create further demand for spacious
quarters for senior executives. Despite the result of the United States Quantitative
Easing Il is to be seen, it is expected further flow of funds into the territory for
fixed assets investment including luxurious residential properties. At home, the
Hong Kong Government in response to the public demand is expected to further
increase supply of land.

It is noted that with the support of the Central Government of China,
every effort has been made to make Hong Kong an offshore -
centre of Renminbi, the pooling of funds and talents in the -
territory is likely to create further demand for prestigious
apartments. We are watching cautiously what
opportunities will arise to our business in Hong Kong.

L]
> . . . 4= = ‘
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GROUP STRUCTURE
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E. Bon
Holdings Limited E. Bon (BVI)
(Cayman Islands) Holdings Limited }
TR BT E. Bon (BVI)
BERBRAA Holdings Limited
(Cayman Islands) 100%
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Asia Bon Company Limited
EREMEEEEERAH
100%

D. I.Y. Limited
D. I. Y. Limited
100%

H20 (Pro) Limited
KZBRERDE
100%

Massford Holdings Limited

Massford Holdings Limited T~ YN

100%
A A S—

Right Century Limited
BHERLF
100%

|

Sanfield Properties Limited
FEEXFRAA
100%

|

Sunny Building and Decoration
Materials Company Limited
FHEGMHNESIABRAR
100%

\

Tech Pro (China) Limited

Bonlex Properties Limited
AANEXARAT
100%

E. Bon Building Materials
Company Limited
RHTREMNNERLF

100%

Kitchen (Pro) Limited
BzRERAHE

Massford (Hong Kong) Limited
ZEGEBERLA
100%

MIA Limited
MIA Limited

100%

BREEERAF
100%

Techpro Trading Limited
BRENEZERLA
100%

Twinwood Venture Limited
Twinwood Venture Limited
100%

Shanghai Tech Pro

100% I

International Trading Company Limited h

LEBEREBESZARLE
100%

Shanghai Techpro Interior
Decoration Company Limited

LBERERKHARLE

$

China Reconstruct Design Limited
RE R RALER)ERAE
100%

Bonco Ironmongery Limited
REAEEMARLDA
100%
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Register office

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Head office and principal place of
business

16th-18th Floors,

First Commercial Building
33 Leighton Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

Company secretary
IP Fu Wa, Benthony AcA, CPA
Auditors

Grant Thornton Jingdu Tianhua
Certified Public Accountants
20th Floor, Sunning Plaza

10 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Authorised representatives

TSE Hon Kit, Kevin
IP Fu Wa, Benthony Aca, CPA

Hong Kong branch share registrar
and transfer office

Tricor Abacus Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

ENBEARETEFLHBR

BE
ALWEST
F-ALXE
16-18%

DR WP
HZ 4 ACA, CPA
¥ B
EHMRE(EB)2UHESFH
FiBH £ 1t
HBEED
#EE105
T RE20%
RERA R
BENA

H Z 4 ACA, CPA

FREROE /- BIEL

SERBEERATF
BBEF
ERKRER285
SHCFR 268

Cayman Islands principal share
registrar and transfer office

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House

68 Fort Street

P.O. Box 609

Grand Cayman

KY1-1107

Cayman Islands

Legal advisers on Cayman Islands
law

Conyers Dill & Pearman, Cayman
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman

KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

Legal advisers on Hong Kong law

Pang, Wan & Choi, Solicitors
7th Floor, Chinachem Tower
34-37 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Principal bankers

- The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

— Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited

— Wing Lung Bank Limited

— Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Asia) Limited

— Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

— Australia and New Zealand Banking
Group Limited
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Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited

Butterfield House
68 Fort Street
P.O. Box 609
Grand Cayman
KY1-1107
Cayman Islands

FEHG AR ZERBM

Conyers Dill & Pearman, Cayman
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman

KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEcRE

The directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2011.

Principal activities and geographical analysis of operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the importing and sale of architectural builders hardware,
bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution to operating profit
for the year by principal activity and market is set out in Note 6 to the financial
statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 40.

Final dividend and special bonus dividend

The Board has resolved to recommend, at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting to be held on 16 September 2011, a final dividend of HK3.0 cents (2010:
HK3.0 cents) and as 2011 being the 35th Anniversary of the Group, a Special
Bonus Dividend of HK2.0 cents (2010: nil) per ordinary share for the year ended
31 March 2011.

The proposed Final Dividend and Special Bonus Dividend, subject to approval
of the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, are not reflected as dividend
payables or share capital of the Group’s financial statements for the year.

If approved by the members, both Final and Special Bonus Dividends will be
paid on 7 October 2011 and distributed to members whose names appear on the
principal or branch register of members of the Company in the Cayman Islands or
Hong Kong respectively (collectively the “Register of Members”) as at the close
of business on 21 September 2011.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and Note 24 to the financial statements respectively.

EEZCEULREES

ECR-—FZAZT-HLEFEZREREFRUFRE

FRUFFHREE X D4
ARAAZEBLSHARARR - EHELADEBUSHAEBFBHEARIBRATS 1
A BEREREM

FEATAFERIBZLERT AN 2GRELFAREE LR 2 2 E5 T UM FRE
BE6 °

Wb 5 K B B 2k

AEEAEAZLETRTEI0N 2GR LEKERNA °

ARERERFANINRE

EECURT B - — S AR+ A BRI ZNERFRAF A LBRURABE-F——
FZR=1T-ALFEZABREEREERS.OBU(ZF-FF : 3.08M) KKK
SERV=Z+ERFRAZFHINAFNBREBREBR2.0BM(ZF-—FF 1 k) °

PRABRERBANIANREARBRRATNERFTAFAHE - ZRARER B D
FREAREBRREFEAMSHMRFIKRER °

WIRBREHE  ZRBRERBANLIANREY RN FT=FE——FAA=+-RELN
HERN  BIARAIH AT ERGRAEBFECEIERREMABRKRE LI M2 R
KoMzEREVNET-F-——F+ALARK -

tE &
AEARAAAEREEZHEXDDHRTREAMBZHRRUSHAME24 -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EScol A

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 23 to the financial
statements.

Distributable reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2011 amounted to
HK$52,519,000. Under Section 34 of the Companies Law (2000 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium is available for distribution to shareholders,
provided that no distribution shall be paid to shareholders out of the Company’s
share premium unless the Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business.

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 114.

Purchase, sale or redemption of shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s
shares during the year.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to encourage and to provide incentive
or reward to its Grantees improving the business
performance and let him/her benefit from his/her
helping to contribute the business success. Further
details of the Scheme are disclosed in the Note 24

to the financial statements.

L
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. N . 4= = ‘
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Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

Details of the Share Options granted under the Share Option Scheme and the
outstanding as at 31 March 2011 are as follows:

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry
GRS E

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony
BHMELE

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun
X B K&

Mr. YICK Kai Chung
SRRAE

Mr. FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie

BEELE

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin
BONAR L&

Other employees

HfRT

In aggregate
B

Number of Share Options

M AT R (%)
REWRRITNEREZMRREERF -2 ——F=A=+-AFENZZHNT :

TR A S B

As at Exercise
As at 31 March Price
1 April 2010 Granted' Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 2011 (HK$)
T=2-%5§ F=2——-% TN
MA—H B 17fE =927 k¥ =B=t+-—H (#Bx)
- 180,000 - - - 180,000 0.814
- 200,000 - - - 200,000 0.814
- 600,000 - - - 600,000 0.814
- 600,000 - - - 600,000 0.814
- 400,000 - - - 400,000 0.814
- 220,000 - - - 220,000 0.814
- 5,500,000 - - - 5,500,000 0.814

- 7,700,000 - - - 7,700,000

Grant Date?

R B2
27 January 2011
“E-——f%—-F=-+tH

27 January 2011
—E-——-f%—-F=-+tH

27 January 2011
—E-—-%-B=+tH

27 January 2011
“E-——f%—-HF=-+tH

27 January 2011
“E-——f%—-F=-+tH

27 January 2011
“E-—-%5-B=+tH

27 January 2011
“E-—-%-B=+tH

Exercisable Period

SRR A

27 January 2012-26 January 2014

“E--H-B=-+tRE
“E-mFE-AZ=FRXH

27 January 2012-26 January 2014

“E--“H-B=+tRE
“E-mE-AZ=+RH

27 January 2012-26 January 2014

“E--H-B=-+tRE
“E-mE-AZ=+RXH

27 January 2012-26 January 2014

“E--H-B=-+tRE
“E-mE-AZ=+RXH

27 January 2012-26 January 2014

“E--H-B=+tRE
“E-mFE-AZ=FR~H

27 January 2012-26 January 2014

“E--H-B=+tRE
“E-mFE-AZ=FRXH

27 January 2012-26 January 2014

“E--H-B=+tRE
“E-mFE-AZ=FRXH

e
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Share Option Scheme (cont’d)

Notes:

1)

@

The closing market price per Share as at the date preceding the date on which the Share
Options were granted was HK$0.85.

The Share Options granted to the Grantees shall vest over 36 months commencing on
the date of grant or 12 months after the date of grant (as the case may be); however if the
Grantee is an Employee, he/she is subject to his/her continued employment on the date of
vesting.

The above options granted are recognised as expenses in the profit and loss in accordance
with the Company’s accounting policy as set out in Note 3.14 to the financial statements.
Other details of Share Options granted by the Company are set out in Note 24 to the financial
statements.

Directors

The directors during the year were:

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

*

TSE Sun Fat, Henry

TSE Sun Po, Tony

LAU Shiu Sun

YICK Kai Chung

FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie *
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. #
WONG Wah, Dominic #
WAN Sze Chung #

Mr. FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie shall retire at the Annual General Meeting on 16 September 2011.
Mr. Fung confirms that there is no disagreement with the Board and there are no other matters
in respect of his retirement that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the
Company.

Independent non-executive directors who entered into contracts with the Company for an initial
fixed term of one year and thereafter shall continue for further successive periods of one year,
provided that the Company may terminate the contracts at the end of each one year period by
giving the other party at least one month’s notice in writing thereof.

A e. bon holdings limited H®BTERER L A

M B AR T & (%)

F5E
(1)

(2)

©)

REBMRNREAHZANR TN I ER0.858T -

RIEARAZHBERETREFALIAIREAAF T AR (ABRAE) BUH=TATARERE A

i HERANER  HATHERHNEEZRE -

LRREMBRRERSI T USRRME3A4 ARERLFEAAZEHIAE - A2 TR HBWRNAHE

R KRBT W SRR M E24

E=E

AE

Uik
Uikl
X 48
ol
ey
5%
B
Pt

*

EREZMT :
EEE
EhE
MEkE
REE
oL
NEE
BAFHLH
FE#

B SE A #

BEGELERT - —FAATABMETZREBERCSE

B FHALEAEMAXERENSEZTERAAARFER °

NRIFRTES - RESAQAETL B -FZEEEY
ERENEREXEFTIT - PEABAMLLES -

REGRIE - BAREBNSEZLHLTEAF

CHEBESZ -5 KAXRTTE-IF



Directors (cont’d)

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun, Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin and Mr. WAN Sze Chung shall retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with Articles 86(3) and 87
of the Company’s Articles of Association and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Directors’ service contracts

Each of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry and Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing on 1
March 2000 and continuing thereafter unless terminated by either party with at
least three months advance notice in writing.

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years commencing on 10 December 2001 and continuing thereafter
unless terminated by either party with at least three months advance notice in
writing.

Each of Mr. FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie and Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 3 October 2007 and 8 September 2008 and will continue thereafter unless
terminated by either party with at least three months advance notice in writing.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors of the Company has entered
into any service contracts with any member of the Group (excluding contracts
expiring or determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation)).

EE (%)

BEARAZLRAAAZTEANFE6B)RES7THF AT @ XNBHEE » BIIRTERE
BELEBTRABERCLRE - FEREESYFERRHEZBEREL -

EERFEN

BHEEERPHETLERESFIRATIRSEY  H-EETF=A-ARITNY
=5 HRK2ES EEREA-ARAZ-—ABERHALT=ZARAPABALILEY o

NAFEESARATIRSEYN A-EE-F+_A+tABUNB=F - HF¥2
L% EEEA-AAE-—ABERHFLT=A A PEBHALILEY -

BEHEEERPIANELEEESAQBATIRSEN  A-SZLtE+AZHR=-%ZF
NEABNREBUNA=F HRE2ES  EZEA-FA5-HBLRE=NAH
HBHLIESS -

BRARESREEN AR AESHESFAEARARAX AT IETRS SN (T —FR
BAERTT-FRRERECEEBERM ML L ZRSSARM) -
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Directors’ interests in contracts

Save as disclosed under the section “Continuing connected transactions” below,
no other contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company, its subsidiaries or holding companies was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ benefits from rights to acquire shares or debentures

Under the terms of the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 9
September 2010, the board of directors of the Company may, at their discretion,
invite any full-time employees or executive directors of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries to subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the
Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the scheme may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company. 3,330,000 share options have been granted to the directors
and substantial shareholder of the Company, or an associate of them since its
adoption. The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited amended the Listing Rules
governing share option schemes.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or holding companies a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

EETAROZNE

BRI BEXERS IFREN  FLAESHATEALIREEAHELRFENITY -
ARRARALEBREAMTEEERAFENEANAFEAERZ2EASNTERES
B HEE XK °

EERAMARD A ZH WAz F 5

BET-E-FFAANAARAZEIRAWRRIUYZ2EZR  ESCANBRBEAAT
REFAMBEL2RAZENLREAINTESUAMALAAEREEI0BTZEBR °
BZUTUTUERECMBRNZROESHEFTBEIRLTACRTRA10% - MK
BT RISRATEAK » 3,330,000 RMERTES  TERARERRAL - BBHKER
SHERARA (TR DEITEE AR 2 EHAN -

TEEAEANE  ARAREEAHELARLEHENRE - UEAQXTESEY
AN B AR E A A A B R 2 BRAD 3R R 25 AR AR A & o
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Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares

As at 31 March 2011, the interests and long positions of the directors, chief
executives of the Company and their associates in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which have been notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and long positions which any
such director or chief executive was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) and have been recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which have been notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model code contained in the Listing Rules, were
as follows:

(i) Long position in shares and underlying shares

EETRORMEIRG 2N

T-E-——F=ZR=+t-R FARAEERIFRTRAARKREZTERRAALTALT
FEEMAERER (CEXIES R PEEH (T ZFH ) 2R - AXBROIBREFRE
MRFEZXOIBEXVBETRFSDBRAA AR B RKX Az NAERGF ¢ (BEREFZF
PIBREZXZESHIZTRAARIERIANBAZRNESHF ) ) AAREZROHE
BE2FZIALFZFTALNAFE 2B LMAZNERFC  IRBLAIANAZ LT RTE
BRTUESRZ2HETU(HEFU D AALARARKRAZRESFCNWT :

(i) RELARDREXRD 2HE

Number of ordinary shares

BEERRRH%KE

Corporate Equity derivatives Percentage of

Personal interest interest  (share options) Total issued share capital
BRALTETR HEXIT
Director B INE: DENE (TR ) &1t R4 2 b A
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 1) R KA (HHE1) - 17,946,647 180,000 18,126,647 6.04%
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 2) B E K4 (HhE2) - 21,407,771 910,000 22,317,771 7.43%
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun X BHEE = = 600,000 600,000 0.20%
Mr. YICK Kai Chung SRTREE 7,899,675 - 600,000 8,499,675 2.83%
Mr. FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie BIEf e — — 400,000 400,000 0.13%
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 3) BN L& (HHE3) - 52,045,244 520,000 52,565,244 17.50%
Note 1:  The interests in shares of the Company is held by Fast Way Management Limited. Mr. M1 :  Fast Way Management Limitedi 5B ZERH » BIFHELEREBRBAZREA ©
TSE Sun Fat, Henry and his spouse are the beneficiaries.
Note 2:  The interests in shares of the Company is held by New Happy Times Limited. Mr. TSE M2 : New Happy Times Limited 5B ZZRH » BIHELERERERANSHEA o BHREZWR
Sun Po, Tony and his family are the beneficiaries. Included in the total sum of share W B EH$360,000%350,000 MBI BB HAGHFALEE(SRELE)RIIEF L (T3
options granted, 360,000 and 350,000 share options are respectively granted to Mr. SREAE)  FEHUNNGHFELEEZERREE 2 Kk o
TSE Sun Ming, Almond, a senior manager, and Ms. LAU Mei Fong, a senior retail
manager, who are also the cousin and sister-in-law of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony.
Note 3:  The interests in shares of the Company is held by Universal Star Group Limited. Mr. TSE Mit5£3 :  Universal Star Group Limited ¥ EZER®M @ WIARAERETHERANZTEA - BEREZH

Hon Kit, Kevin and his family are the beneficiaries. Included in the total sum of share
options granted, 300,000 share options are granted to Ms. TSANG Lai Ping, Maria, the
founder and chief cashier, who is also the mother of Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin.

BRAR# B H 300,000 MR DREABWFLL (MINHARAE)  BEABIREEZEE

P
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Directors’ interests in shares and underlying shares (cont’d)
(ii) Negotiator Consultants Limited (“NCL”)

Director 5=
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Note 4) BT E T (K E4)
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Note 4) E e e (=)

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin (Note 4) EONAR LA (K E4)

Note 4:  Such share is held by Bache Hill Group Limited (“‘BHGL”).

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or their associates had, as
at 31 March 2011, any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was -
the Company, its subsidiaries or holding company a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors,
their spouses or children under 18 years of age
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

L}
L]
. N . 4= = ‘
e. bon holdings limited H®BTERER L A
"

ESTROREXBRG 2N (%)
(ii) Negotiator Consultants Limited([NCL])

Number of ordinary shares held

BELBRG 2HKE
Personal Family Corporate Other
interest interest interest interest Total
INE Rz GG Hp s B
- - - 1 1
- 1 - 1 1
- 1 - 1 1

Mf5¥4 :  Bache Hill Group Limited([BHGL]) B ZZERH -

REXFAEEN T2B-——F=ZR=1t—-0 BESRIETHARAKREREZ
BRAALHERERBEZXPEXNVHBETRESD BAALARARKRAZAAF
FEHEMEFED(EXRZFHEXVE) 2B - HXBROIHEFNERLC (EHE
BREZEXHLEEIEANBEZRERLL)  ARBZFHFEIG2Z5ME R T ZFK
AEFEZBELCMANSARARKIM MBI AL IARBERETUAN2E L
ARBKRAZMBEHKE o

BREXFBEN  FANEFANE > AAAXEEARELAHELSS
EABN ERAARNES REZBEBRTNFUT FLITRE
ApaHEMEMEADEZR G S o
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Biographical details of directors and senior management
Executive directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, aged 54, is a founding member of the Group and the
Chairman of the Company. Mr. TSE possesses over 30 years of experience in the
trading of building materials. He is responsible for the planning of the Group’s
overall strategies and the overall management of the Group.

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, aged 52, is the managing director of the Company and
joined the Group in 1979. Mr. TSE possesses over 30 years of experience in
the trading of building materials and is responsible for the retail business of the
Group. Mr. TSE also assists in the strategic planning and management of the
Group. He is a brother of Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, the Chairman of the Group.

Mr. LAU Shiu Sun, aged 43, joined the Group in 1994. Mr. LAU was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 10 December 2001, before his
appointment, Mr. Lau was a sales manager of the Group and is responsible for
project sales. He graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University (formerly Baptist
College) in 1992 with a bachelor of science degree.

Mr. YICK Kai Chung, aged 52, joined the Group in 1979. Mr. YICK possesses
over 30 years of experience in building materials industry and is responsible for
overseeing major financial statements and wholesale business of the Group and
products sourcing and technical support.

Mr. FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie, aged 40, joined the Group in 2004, is responsible
for the management of project sales in kitchen fittings of the Group. Graduated in
1994 from University of Toronto, Canada with a major in business administration,
he possesses over thirteen years experience in the industry. Mr. FUNG is
responsible for the development of the Group’s marketing strategies and sales of
kitchen fittings.

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin, aged 31, joined the Group in 2004. Mr. TSE graduated
from University of Toronto with a bachelor degree of Commerce. He is
responsible for internal information technology development, the launching of the
furniture business and the marketing of products distributed by the Group. Mr.
TSE is a nephew of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the managing director of the Group.

EENEREEARZER
WITES

BHERE 54%  AEAZHUDRARAQAZER - WAL TEAMBRZ SEA
BEFELY - RARENAEACBARHREAEETE -

BHELE 525 ARNFAZEBELE  T-ALNFMALER - BIEETEAM
BREFARBAIOFELR  ARFKAZTELS - WAETMBARE 2 R IT
WhER - KFHAKATFEHMELEZRSE -

XBHEE - 43%  T-ANBEMARER - T -FF-F+-ATARZENEX
ARARTES - REZEF  NEENAERHAZHELE  ATRAEHEE - RE-—NAAZ

FRLTERBR2ARF(ARELFR)  BEEFFLFEM -

ZRRAE 527 T-AELtAEMAFRER - KT -FBEMRFLATZHBRZENA
NARTES - FELETERMBLATA0FELE  ATREEAEATERARELR
W ARRFRRBRBEASE °

BEGRE 407 T-EENEMALEE - ARREAREFERER T HA #
MOBXHEEREEBHNEANEE - T-ANNERRZLEZAFIHERZARES
T -BRERABABFHERELY  ARARANTHE REEREHE -

BUXARE - 31%  TZESNEMALKR - WELEERL TZRZKRE  HREAF
AREFIZM - WALEANRLAAABAANRERIE SRRMLF2FARER
SRLHEFr e WO AKRAEZELEHHERECEE -
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Biographical details of directors and senior management (cont’d)
Independent Non-executive directors

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 28 January 2000. Mr. LEUNG holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the University of East Asia, Macau (now known as
“the University of Macau”). Mr. LEUNG is a senior practicing director of Wong
Lam Leung & Kwok C.P.A. Ltd.. He is a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of International Accountants. Mr. LEUNG is an associate of
the Institute of Chartered Accounts in England & Wales, the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong, the member of the Macau Society of Certified Practicing Accounts,
the Society of Chinese Accounts & Auditors, the Chartered Management Institute
and the International Institute of Management. Mr. LEUNG is an Independent
Non-executive Director of Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 19 June 2001. He graduated from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 1972 with honours bachelor’s degree of Social Science in
Economics. He was appointed director and general manager of Hongkong Ferry
(Holdings) Ltd., formerly The Hongkong & Yaumatei Ferry Co., Ltd. until late 1989.
He has been actively involved in China trade and garment industry over the last
few years.

Mr. WAN Sze Chung, aged 38, was appointed as an independent non-executive
director on 27 September 2004. Mr. WAN obtained a Master degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, a Master degree in
Education (Counselling & Guidance) from the Newcastle University of United
Kingdom and a 2nd Bachelor degree in Chinese Law from Tsinghua University.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. WAN is
a director of training and consultancy firm specialising in corporate and personal
training. In addition, Mr. WAN is also the president of the Institute of Professional
Trainers and Coaches (HK) and the Hong Kong Chapter Leader of International
Coach Federation (USA).

i'. e. bon holdings limited H®BTERER L A

EERSREBARZEN (&)
BIFHRTES

RAEBAFHL 64%  ToEZEF-AMARARHENRYFRITES - RELERE
BORTARZ(ABRFANAZ N IFEEMLZM - REEDNEMRBL U MES AR
BRAFAZERNLESE - RAXEBRTQU2TN - FE2UILAS - REREER2
AR ZER2A - REETAREEFLUMIAS  FEBRFZES  BN2HWA
2 BREASUHNAS  RERHEEFCRERTLEEZ2Z2R - RALETN
BRAEHLOAETRZIERERATDZBIFRITES -

B&R4E 627 ToEE-SXATAARZEENNIFRTEZ BT -NE=HF
HUTEBPXAE  HRBELFFRALSNEREZL HETERIMR(BR)AR
AR (FHREBRRE N RAERLA)REENESRELEEZE-AN\AF - BF - K
BHEEFERZRHARLS -

BRRELE 38 T-ERNFAAZTELERZENRYFRITES  HEFER
RXARFME 2 IAEEMT 2  REAFHRAENBEE(HS) ML 2L UARBE
RENEZFLIZM - HENBB2UMASREFLANSUHTA2A - BEERN -
BELZFNREAARANES > TUFELRMNAEZI - B6 - BEENERZINHHS
(BRD2)ER °



"‘.r— « L

Biographical details of directors and senior management (cont’d)
Senior Management

Mr. AU Lai Chuen, Hercules, aged 54, joined the Group in 1982 and is a director
of one subsidiary of the Company. Mr. AU possesses over 25 years of experience
in the building materials industry and is responsible for project related sales and
marketing activities.

Mr. LO Wai Man, aged 57, joined the Group in 1979. Mr. LO is a technical director
and is responsible for overseeing provision of technical support for bathroom
collections. He possesses over 30 years of experience in selling building materials
and is a licensed plumber.

Mr. CHANG Kai Chuen, Roy, aged 37, joined the Group in 1991. Mr. CHANG
is a general manager of project sales division. He possesses over 10 years of
experience in building materials industry and is responsible for project sales.

Mr. MAK Lai Man, Eric, aged 44, joined the Group in 1992. Mr. MAK obtained a
diploma certificate in Sociology from Hong Kong Shue Yan University, formerly
Shue Yan College and a certificated of Organisational Behaviour from Heriot-Watt
University. He possesses over 10 years experience in building materials industry.
Mr. MAK is a marketing manager of the Group and is now responsible for project
sales in sanitary products.

Ms. LAU Mei Fong, Cherry, aged 39, joined the Group since 1996. Ms. LAU is
the general manager of the retails shops of the Group and is in charge of overall
shop management. She possesses over 10 years of experience in retail business.
Ms. LAU is a sister-in-law of Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, the managing director of the
Group.

Mr. LI Kwan Wai, aged 54, joined the Group in 2009. Mr. LI is a Hong Kong
Registered Architect graduated from University of Hong Kong. Mr. LI is our
legal representative of the Group’s wholly subsidiary Shanghai Techpro Interior
Decoration Company Limited. Mr. LI possesses over 20 years professional
experience in project management, architectural design and planning and
involved in major building projects in China, Canada, Vietnham and Hong Kong.
Mr. LI also obtained a master degree in Engineering (Urban Planning) from
Tsinghua University, China.

EEREREEARZEN (&)
BREEAR

MppERE 545 T-ANZFMAXER  AARFAEP-IHELTAZES - K
RETERAMBLAEA2FLYE  ARMEBXHEERTHE TF -

FHRAE 577 T-AELAEMAFTER - FRETDIRAES  ARKENERF
REZEAZE HTHERRMBAERARAIFLE - FN—FEKKRE -

RNERE 375 T-AN—FMAFKR - BEENTEHERLE - WTERAM
BULAEA10FLYE  ANKNBEHE -

FIREE M4%F  T-ANZEMALRER - EEEBRBEEBRCAZ(FIHRFMCH
BR) M A M4t £ % XEIE P K Heriot-Watt University M A WA RTAFIED « EAE
TEAMBLBEEIOFLER - BRAXEAZHHELE  HARIDA=mTIEMEX
HE o

XEFPME - 39% » T-AAARFEMARER - MPEANKATHBLELE - AR TH
BREEETF - PMETEELRABAI0FLR - ROAKEAESELERHIZTLER
BRI

FTHELE 545 T-ERNFNMALKR - TRERBEEBAFRANFIRER
FIEM NEBIMERD - FELEBELXEALAMELTLBEREARMGAR
NAZERRR - FRETRERYERE ERRUTRAY - BERIBEEBURSEAE
BEAEARR20F 24 MEZS2BRANBERTEXMN MEX - BEMES o
WO ZRETEERFREIREME (HHAK) 2 R ©
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Substantial shareholders

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section 336 of the
SFO of shows that as at 31 March 2011, the Company had been notified of the
following substantial shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital. These interests are in addition to those disclosed above in
respect of the directors and chief executive.

Long position in shares of the Company

Name of Shareholder R B

Happy Voice Limited

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers and customers are as follows :

Purchases

The largest supplier 13%
Five largest suppliers combined 41%
Sales

The largest customer 14%
Five largest customers combined 32%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.
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Continuing connected transactions

The related party transaction as disclosed in ‘
Note 27 to the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2011 in respect of rental expenses of "
approximately HK$2,220,000 paid to NCL also constitutes '

a connected party transaction. NCL is a subsidiary of BHGL in ’
which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and Mr. TSE Hon

Kit, Kevin have beneficial interests. The Stock Exchange has granted conditional
waivers to the Company from strict compliance with the requirements of Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules. In the opinion of the directors including the independent
non-executive directors of the Company, the transactions were conducted in the
ordinary course of the business of the Group and in accordance with the terms of
the agreements.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors of the Company, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of the Company’s securities as required under the Listing
Rules.

Auditors

Grant Thornton Hong Kong (“GTHK”, now known as “JBPB & Co.”) was
appointed as auditors of the Company on 13 September 2007. On 2 November,
2010, Grant Thornton International announced the appointment of Jingdu Tianhua
Hong Kong as its new member firm in Hong Kong.

On 19 November, 2010, it was announced that GTHK has concluded a merger
agreement and will practise in the name of another certified public accountants
practice. The Company received a resignation letter from GTHK resigning as
auditors of the Company effective 19 January 2011.
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Auditors (cont’d)

As the Board would like to continue to use the services provided by a member
of Grant Thornton International in Hong Kong, after consideration by the Audit
Committee of the Board, Jingdu Tianhua Hong Kong was appointed as auditors
of the Company effective 19 January 2011. Jingdu Tianhua Hong Kong changed
its English name to Grant Thornton Jingdu Tianhua on 8 December 2010.

Grant Thornton Jingdu Tianhua will retire and be eligible to offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to authorise the Board to appoint auditors and to fix their remuneration.

For and on behalf of the Board

TSE Sun Fat, Henry
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 June 2011

A e. bon holdings limited H®BTERER L A

BEIm (%)

HMTESCFEHAEXAYEERSCTMBESINEERAMREZRS  HES2=
BRERCANEZERERAEZARHBREL(EB)2UMESHALLARKT A=F
——E-AThBRBEN REREL(FB)SUMEFINEIALERT=Z—FF
+=AJ/\BHJingdu Tianhua Hong Kong®E 21 Grant Thornton Jingdu Tianhua °

RERE(BR)2UMESHBERSTEACEKRERSEE - —TRUERLTNERR
BERSELREBY  BRNESCEARANAEEHME

RRES2

E:3
5 3 5%
&8 —E——HXH=-1+WH



",.--— o] i

CORPORATEGOVERNANCEREPORT

L ERKSE

E. Bon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) endeavours to maintain its high
standard of corporate governance, and continues to review and reinforce its
corporate governance measures. The Company believes that accountability and
reporting system with high transparency for the Company’s operation has been
in place. Disclosure could also be made timely and accurately. At the same time,
the rights of shareholders can be treated and protected equitably.

The Company is led by an efficient and responsible Board, which is comprised
of individuals with high qualifications and relevant experience. This can ensure
that the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) maintain good corporate
governance practices and have comprehensive internal control systems, so as
to cope with the Group’s development strategies and increase the shareholders’
value.

The Board has complied with the code provision listed in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2011 with the exception of
the code provision A.4.1. Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules stipulates the code of
good corporate governance (the “Code”), and two levels of recommendations:
(@) code provisions; and (b) recommended best practices. It is also states that
issuers are expected to comply with, but may choose to deviate from, the
code provisions. The recommended best practices are for guidance only. The
Company opted to comply with mandatory code provisions and provisions on
recommended best practices that are considered by the Board as reasonable
and appropriate.

Under the code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be appointed for
a specific term. Currently, non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific
term of service. This constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1. However,
they are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general meeting under the
articles of association of the Company. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the Code.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules sets a required standard against
which directors must measure their conduct regarding transactions in securities
of their listed companies. The Company has adopted the Model Code as its
own code of conduct regarding director’s securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all directors, the directors have confirmed compliance with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended.
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The Board

The Board comprises six executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors. The names of the directors are as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director)
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun

Mr. YICK Kai Chung

Mr. FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie

Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P.
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic
Mr. WAN Sze Chung

Biographies for all directors are listed in Biographical details of directors and
senior management set out on pages 19 to 21.

The Board of the Company assumes the responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs.

The Board is responsible for establishing the strategic direction of the
Company, setting the objectives of management, monitoring the performance of
management, overseeing the management of the Company’s relationships with
shareholders, ensuring that a framework of prudent and effective controls is in
place to enable risks to be assessed and managed, and setting the Company’s
values and standards.

When the Board delegates management and administrative functions to
management, it has given clear directions on the powers of management with
respect to the circumstances where management is to report back and obtain
prior approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitment on behalf of the Company.

A e. bon holdings limited H®BTERER L A
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The Board (cont’d)

The task of the management and staff of the Company is the successful
implementation of the strategies and directions as determined by the Board. In
doing so, they must apply business principles and ethics, which are consistent
with those expected by the Board and Shareholders and other stakeholders.

The independent non-executive directors help to ensure that the Board can
make independent judgment efficiently. The independent non-executive directors
possess appropriate professional qualification among them, some possess
expertise in accounting and financial management. Each independent non-
executive director has confirmed to the Stock Exchange his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, and has also submitted an
annual written confirmation to the Company confirming his independence. All
non-executive directors are engaged by contract every year and are subject to
retirement in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Except as disclosed in the Annual Report, there is no special relationship,
including financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
the members of the Board.

All directors actively participated in the Board meetings to discuss the overall
strategies and business directions of the Group. Throughout the year, the
Company held four regular and seven irregular meetings. To ensure that the
directors could obtain all related information for performing their duties and
responsibilities, documents for the Board meeting were supplied to directors for
their consideration before the meeting according to the regulations
set out in the Listing Rules and code provision.
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The Board (cont’d)

Throughout the year, the Company Director’s attendance was as follows:

Executive Directors Attendance
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry (Chairman) 11
Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony (Managing Director) 11
Mr. YICK Kai Chung 10
Mr. LAU Shiu Sun 10
Mr. FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie 10
Mr. TSE Hon Kit, Kevin 10
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. 6
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic 6
Mr. WAN Sze Chung 6

The Board makes arrangements to provide opportunities for all directors to
include proposed discussion issued in the agenda of regular Board meetings. At
least 14 days notice are given in respect of regular Board meetings. For all other
Board meetings, reasonable notices are given.

Management provides the Board and committees with sufficient, adequate and
timely information which is complete and reliable and which enables directors
to make informed decisions on matters placed before them, and perform their
duties and responsibilities as the directors. Management provides adequate
explanations and information to the Board to enable directors to make an
informed assessment of the financial and other information put before them
for approval. In addition, the Board and each director have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management.

Minutes of each Board meeting and committee meeting are kept by the company
secretary (the “Company Secretary”) and are available for inspection by any
director. Minutes record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board
and the decisions reached.
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The Board (cont’d)

All directors have free access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures are followed and
that applicable laws and regulations are complied with. Moreover, all directors
may seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances in
the furtherance of their duties and for the associated fees at the Company’s
expenses.

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest in a matter to
be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by holding a Board meeting set up for that purpose
pursuant to a resolution passed in a Board meeting. Only independent non-
executive directors who, and whose associates, have no materials interest in
the transaction concerned will be present at such meeting. Directors concerns
must abstain from voting on any Board resolution and will not be counted in the
quorum.

Chairman and Managing Director

Chairman of the Board and Managing Director (in this report, “Managing Director”
is equivalent to “Chief Executive Officer” set out in Appendix 23 of the Listing
Rules) are two clearly separated roles and are performed by different individuals.
Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Chairman of the Board, is responsible for managing
the Board. Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony, Managing Director, is responsible for the
Company’s operations. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman of
the Board and the Managing Director has been clearly defined and the written
terms of reference have been set.

Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board are as follows:
(@)
(b)

Providing leadership for the Board;

Ensuring all Directors are properly briefed on matters to be discussed at
Board meetings;

Ensuring all Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information in
a timely manner;

Ensuring that the Board works effectively, discharges its responsibilities and
discusses all key issues in a timely manner;
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Chairman and Managing Director (cont’d)

(e) Ensuring that, the Company Secretary settles and approves the agenda for
Board meetings on the Chairman’s behalf, taking into account any matters
proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda;

() Providing effective communication with Shareholders and that views of
Shareholders are communicated to the Board as a whole;

(9) Ensuring good corporate governance practices and procedures are in place;

(h) Giving each Director an opportunity to express his views at Board meetings,
encouraging all Directors to fully contribute to the Board’s affairs and
ensuring that the Board acts in the best interests of the Company; and

() Facilitating the effective contribution of all Directors, in particular Non-
executive Directors, and building constructive relations between Executive
and Non-executive Directors.

The Managing Director is appointed by the Board, his responsibilities are as
follows:

(@) Providing leadership for the management;
(b) Implementing and reporting to the Board on the Company’s strategies;

C

—_
-~

Overseeing the implementation by the Company of the objectives set by the
Board;

(d) Providing all such information to the Board as is necessary to enable the
Board to monitor the performance of management;

(e) Leading the management of the Company’s relationships with its
stakeholders;

() Putting in place programmes for management development and succession;

(9) Working with the Head of Finance, establishing and maintaining proper
internal controls and systems as well as disclosure controls and procedures;
and

(h) Discharging such duties and authorities as may be delegated in writing to him
by the Board.
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Board committees

The Board has established two committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 29 September 2005. It is
comprised of two Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive
Director. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic.

Roles and function of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(@) Making recommendations to the Board on policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors, Senior Management and all other employees of
the corporate office and on the establishment of a formal and transparent

procedure for developing policy on such remuneration;

Determining the remuneration of all Executive Directors and Senior
Management;

Making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the Non-
executive Directors;

Reviewing and approving performance-based remuneration by referring to
corporate goals and objectives set by the Board;

Reviewing and approving the compensation payable to Executive Directors
and Senior Management relating to any loss or termination of their office or
appointment to ensure that such compensation is determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms;

Reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
determined in accordance with relevant contractual terms; and

Ensuring no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.
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Board committees (cont’d)
Remuneration Committee (cont’d)

The Remuneration Committee reports to the Board on its discussion results
and recommendations after each meeting and provides sufficient resource to
discharge its duties and is authorised by the Board to obtain independent legal or
other professional advices.

Throughout the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to review the
remuneration of the Executive Directors and Senior Management of the
Company. Discussion results and recommendations have been proposed to the
Board for its review.

Throughout the year, committee members’ attendance was as follows:

Remuneration Committee Members Attendance
Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic 1
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. 1
(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. YICK Kai Chung (Executive Director) 1

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee established on 22 March 2000, and is currently comprised
of three Independent Non-executive Directors. The Audit Committee is chaired by
Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P..

Roles and functions of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(1) Handling the relationship between the Company and the external auditors
(include: making recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors, approve remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditors, handle issues for the
resignation or dismissal of external auditors, review and monitor the
independence and objectivity of the external auditors and effectiveness of the
audit process and develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services);

Reviewing the financial information of the Company; and

~
>

(8) Monitoring the financial reporting system and internal control procedures of
the Company.
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Board committees (cont’d)
Audit Committee (cont’d)

The Audit Committee reports to the Board on its discussion results and
recommendations after each meeting.

Throughout the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the 2010 annual report and
interim report of the Company, discussed the effectiveness of the internal control
with external auditors, and reviewed the 2011 budget auditing fees.

In addition, the Audit Committee considered and reviewed the annual report for
the year ended annual result on 24 June 2011, and proposed to the Board for
their approval.

All members of the Audit Committee actively participated in the committee’s
meetings. Throughout the year, the Audit Committee met five times. Discussion
results and recommendations have been proposed to the Board for its review,
and related recommendations were adopted by the Board.

Throughout the year, committee members’ attendance was as follows:

Audit Committee Members Attendance
Mr. LEUNG Kwong Kin, J.P. 5
(Independent Non-executive Director)
(Chairman of Audit Committee)

Mr. WONG Wah, Dominic 5
(Independent Non-executive Director)
Mr. WAN Sze Chung 5

(Independent Non-executive Director)

All Directors acknowledge their responsibilities in preparing the financial
statements. As at 31 March 2011, none of the Directors are aware of any
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubts
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. As such, the
Directors have prepared the Company’s financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Responsibilities of external auditors to the financial statements are set out in the
auditors’ report of the 2011 annual report.
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Nomination of Directors

The Board has not established a nomination committee. According to the Articles
of Association of the Company, the Board has the power from time to time and at
any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board. The Board reviews the structure, size and composition
of the Board from time to time and makes recommendation on the appointment
of Directors. During the year, except as disclosed above, there has been no
change to the members of the Board.

Remuneration of the auditors

For the year ended 31 March 2011, audit fee paid by the Company to Grant
Thornton Jingdu Tianhua (independent auditors of the Company) was HK$560,000.

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the financial statements
of the Company and the Group. The reporting responsibilities of the auditors are
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on page 37 to 39 of the annual report.

Internal control

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective internal control
system for the Group. The system is for the interests of the shareholders by
protecting the shareholders’ investment and the assets of the Group.

For implementing internal control effectively, the Company reviewed the following
five elements for internal control:

(i) Overall control

The Group has established a comprehensive organisation structure and
deployed suitable personnel for the efficient implementation of policies.
Adequate information is also provided. Executive Directors and the Senior
Management are granted appropriate authority to execute the strategies,
policies and targets of the Group effectively when risks are within control. At
the same time, the Board and Senior Management shall communicate the
values and code of conduct of the Company to all the staff, for maintaining
honesty and a high level of morality. In addition, all Directors actively
participate in the affairs of the Board and the work of all Board Committees.
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Internal control (cont’d)
(ii) Risk assessment

The Group determines annual operation targets, financial reporting targets
and compliance targets in accordance with the development strategies set
by the Board. This is to ensure that the Group operates within risks that are
of tolerate and reasonable level.

The Company shall review the risks faced by the Group with external auditors
regularly, so as to set a solid base for the Board to review the effectiveness of
internal control and report to the shareholders on issues in relation to internal
control.

(iii) Control activities

The Group carried out control activities comprising a diverse range of policies
and procedures, including conducting reviews of actual performance,
reviewing of performance reports, checking information processing in
transaction, performing physical controls, analysing performance indicators
and dividing and segregating duties amongst different people.

(iv) Information and communication

The Board and Senior Management shall communicate the importance
of control to the staff, enabling the staff to understand that control must
be implemented. The staff shall regularly report any information related to
operation, financial and regulation to the Board and Senior Management.

The Senior Management shall provide the latest information on the Group
to the Board and the Board Committees regularly or under material
circumstances, in a view to have sufficient preparation for any risks.

In order to lower risks, the Company actively communicates with, and
considers opinions from, all external parties, so that it is able to take
appropriate actions in face of risks.

(v) Monitoring

The Company shall continuously assess and properly report the performance
of the internal control system.
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Shareholders’ rights and investors’ relationship

It is the Company’s policies to have open communication and disclose
information in a fair manner. Information disclosure is a key means to enhance
corporate governance standard. Shareholders can assess the Company’s
performance based on the information and provide opinions to the Company.
Information relating to the Group and its business, together with its financial
condition, are disclosed in the 2011 annual report and the Company’s website at
www.ebon.com.hk.

All registered shareholders shall receive notice of the Annual General Meeting (the
“AGM”) and special general meeting (together the “Meeting”) by post. The notice
of the Meeting contains an agenda, resolutions proposed and a voting form. All
shareholders, whose shares are registered in the register of members, are entitled
to attend the Meeting. Shareholders who cannot attend the Meeting can appoint
their proxies or the chairman of the meeting as their proxies by completing
the proxy form enclosed with the notice of the meeting and returning it to the
Company’s share registrar. Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all resolutions at
general meetings shall be decided on a voting by poll. Procedures for demanding
a vote by poll, together with the notice of the meeting, have been enclosed with a
circular dispatched to the shareholders. The procedures shall be read out at the
Meeting by the chairman of the meeting.

In addition, separate resolutions for actually separated issues shall be proposed
to the Meeting for the approval of shareholders.

The AGM is considered as an annual significant event of the Company. The
AGM can provide a precious opportunity for the shareholders and the Board to
exchange constructive opinions. All Directors and the Senior Management shall
attend the AGM. Apart from attending the AGM, the Chairman of the Board shall
arrange the chairmen of each Board Committee to attend and answer questions
at the AGM.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

VA 7 QU =

Grant Thornton
SRR AL

To the members of E. Bon Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of E. Bon Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 40 to 113, which comprise the consolidated and the company statements
of financial position as at 31 March 2011, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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GrantThornton
R

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2011 and
of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared

in accordance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Grant Thornton Jingdu Tianhua
Certified Public Accountants

20th Floor, Sunning Plaza

10 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

24 June 2011
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Write off of trade receivables

Fair value change on derivative financial instruments
Revaluation surplus on buildings

Share option costs

Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Exchange gain on translation of financial statements
of foreign operations

Surplus on revaluation of properties held for own use

Tax effect relating to components of other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share for profit attributable to
the equity holders of the Company during the year
- Basic
— Diluted

m e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
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INCOME

2011 2010

—E——fF —B-FF

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
D=3 THER THExT
(restated)

(E5)

5 388,240 446,910
(236,281) (279,824)

151,959 167,086

5 1,988 807
(64,072) (61,585)
(58,228) (55,454)

(5,345) -
- (822)

- 3,009

9 (2,047) -
8 (589) (653)

7 23,666 52,888
11(a) (6,168) (8,657)
17,498 44,231

829 326

42,718 7,191
2,487 (907)

46,034 6,610

| |

63,532 50,841

14

5.8 cents #1l
N/ATEH

14.7 cents 74l
N/AT & FB
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As at 31 March 2011
F=Z-——%=HA=+-—H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Derivative financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing borrowings
Provision for tax

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

= ! " : ey e
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BERER
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BT RO L
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BRFE

Note

Bt 3E

15
22

18
19

20
21

22

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2011 2010 2009
=F——-F —F-%F —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TFE T THET
(restated) (restated)

(E%) (E%)

128,514 83,633 73,370
2,049 1,570 1,627
130,563 85,203 74,997
90,344 84,742 73,469
131,191 122,979 90,720
- - 322
43,984 51,918 39,110
265,519 259,639 203,621
59,116 38,942 30,579
41,181 60,865 44,852
5,052 3,996 3,501
105,349 103,803 78,932
160,170 155,836 124,689
290,733 241,039 199,686
2,273 4,760 3,853
288,460 236,279 195,833
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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As at 31 March 2011
FT-F-——-%=A=+-H

EQUITY

Equity attributable to Company’s equity holders
Share capital

Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

P

LAU Shiu Sun
X 4B

Director
EZ

e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

M

A RARANBHEAN SR
e

#%

W B E

Note
F

23
25

TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

B
Director
EZ

2011 2010 2009
=F——-F —F-%F —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHET THET
(restated) (restated)

(E%) (E%)

30,030 23,100 23,100
258,430 213,179 172,733
288,460 236,279 195,833
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As at 31 March 2011
F=Z-——%=HA=+-—H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Interest in subsidiaries

Current assets

Due from subsidiaries
Prepayments and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Other payables
Tax payable

Due to subsidiaries

Net current (liabilities)/assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

LAU Shiu Sun
X B
Director

EZ

B R OB
R B =
KB L RN

& =

B U BB A B 2 F I
AR % EL A R U R IR
NeRNE&EE

bS]

B A

H At B3 5
RIS B TR

BIAS Y& 22 B) 2 FR I

R (AR)RFEEE
BB ROR B R
BFERE

M 2
AR
&
R L&

TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

HHXA
Director
EE

Notes
B E

16

17

20
17

23
25

2011 2010
—g——& —2-3%
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fhx Fi
90,917 90,917
65,848 64,569
43 148

31 80
65,922 64,797
35 74

10 -
74,245 59,949
74,290 60,023
(8,368) 4,774
82,549 95,691
82,549 95,691
30,030 23,100
52,519 72,591
82,549 95,691
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

Interest expense

Interest income

Provision for slow-moving inventories

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

Write off of trade receivables

Write off of other receivables

Loss arising from change in fair value of forward foreign
exchange contracts

Loss on written off property, plant and equipment

Revaluation surplus of building

Depreciation

Share option costs

Operating profit before working capital changes
Increase in inventories

Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations
Income tax refund
Income tax paid

Net cash from operating activities

e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A
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2011 2010
—2——-F —E-BF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
{pz3 THERT THET
(restated)
(&%)
23,666 52,888
589 653
(59) (69)
3,070 3,621
- 209
5,345 -
- 819
- 322
2 —
- (3,009)
8,029 6,836
2,047 -
42,689 62,270
(8,672) (14,894)
(12,331) (32,184)
20,174 8,222
41,860 23,414
898 37
(7,716) (8,419)
35,042 15,032
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2011 2010
—z——F —Z-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iz FTHET FEx
(restated)
(E3)
Cash flow from investing activities REEH2ANERE
Acquisition of subsidiary R F I A B 26 1 (774)
Interest received RS 59 69
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WYL~ T ERIRE (10,194) (6,810)
Net cash used in investing activities REEZ)5) =740 (10,134) (7,515)
Cash flow from financing activities BRENZANERE
Bank loan raised FIBRITIIN 4,745 7,731
Interest paid on bank borrowings BAHRITHRAFIS (588) (646)
Interest paid on obligations under finance lease ENRAERRE (1) (7)
Dividends paid ERE (13,398) (10,395)
Repayment of other bank loans B E A AR 1T B RK (8,038) (4,570)
Repayment of obligations under finance lease EERERRRS 7 (56)
(Decrease)/Increase in trust receipt loans and Ri ﬁf* RWREGIR R 0K EWI 2
import invoice financing ) /120 (16,384) 12,908
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities BE T HE (T ) TAEER (33,671) 4,965
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents NeERALZEZ(RD) B (8,763) 12,482
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, on cash held RTINS 2 20 829 326
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year FEzHERUEEE 51,918 39,110
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year, represented FRzUYeRNEEE
by bank balances and cash (RITERRAE) 43,984 51,918
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ag ;”g;d;“_”i."’ié‘g

At 1 April 2009
Dividends
Transfer to statutory reserve

Transaction with owners

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Exchange gain on translation of
financial statements of foreign operations
Surplus on revaluation of properties held
for own use
Tax effect relating to components
of other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
At 31 March 2010

At 1 April 2010

Capitalisation on bonus issue of shares
Issue of share option

Dividends

Transaction with owners

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Exchange gain on translation of
financial statements of foreign operations
Surplus on revaluation of
properties held for own use
Tax effect relating to components
of other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
At 31 March 2011
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Share
Share Share Revaluation Merger Capital Exchange  Statutory option  Retained

capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
BA  ROEN  BEMEE SHEE  AA@EE  LAME EEEE  MRAEE  REEA /it
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
THT TET TR TR TET TET TET TET THET TR
(restated) (restated)  (restated)

(E5) (E5) (E5)

23,100 38,161 22,154 6,979 2,896 315 - - 102,228 195,833
- - - - - - - - (10,395) (10,395)

- - - - - - 261 - (261) -
- - - - - - 261 - (10,656) (10,395)

- - - - - - - - 44,231 44,231

- - - - - 326 - - - 326

- - 7,191 - - - - - - 7,191
- - (907) - - - - - - (907)

- - 6,284 - - 326 - - 44,231 50,841
23,100 38,161 28,438 6,979 2,896 641 261 - 135,803 236,279
23,100 38,161 28,438 6,979 2,896 641 261 - 135,803 236,279
6,930 (6,930) - - - = = = - _
- - - - - - - 2,047 - 2,047
- - - - - - - - (13,398) (13,398)
6,930 (6,930) - - - - - 2,047 (13,398) (11,351)
- - - - - - - - 17,498 17,498

- - - - - 829 - - - 829

- - 42,718 - - - - - - 42,718

- - 2,487 - - - - - - 2,487

- - 45,205 - - 829 - - 17,498 63,532
30,030 31,231 73,643 6,979 2,396 1,470 261 2,047 139,903 288,460
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W E W& M OE

For the year ended 31 March 2011

HEC
1.

FE-——H=ZA=+-HIEEE
General information

E. Bon Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and domiciled in Hong Kong. Its
registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins, Drive P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is
16th — 18th Floors, First Commercial Building, 33 Leighton Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong. Its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The principal
activity of the Company is investment holding. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the importing and sale of architectural builders hardware,
bathroom, kitchen collections and furniture in Hong Kong.

These financial statements on pages 40 to 113 have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRs”),
which collective term includes all individual HKFRs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The financial statements also include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011 were approved by
the board of directors on 24 June 2011.

— MR % B
BMBTERERAD(TAARNDAFEHESEMRIERTELARNEERAPELH
Cricket Square, Hutchins, Drive P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman IslandsR EFZE L QR H B HP I WEIBSTE—H L KE16-18
B oHRETEBKARZMERLAZERLT - RARAEBUSHRERR - £
MEARNEZLSHEEENEHORHERRES I8 BREBRRM °

AMEHERHITHIONZEFNSAZLCEREB2 UM CMA 2 ABEERANER

MES/EEN  BFEFEERTHNERBVSREEN FEQITENRERE - BE

jﬁiﬁiﬁéﬂz HRUREBRAZMZKEAEMN RS - EMSRRENTFHSEE
AEXSZMAERARES EHANZERREMTE °

BE-S——5-A-+-ALFEMSRRCT-S— -5 A-tNAESL2
B ERBBIFL o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W E W& M OE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

2. Adoption of new and amended HKFRSs 2. XMFITREBITEBMFRS EN

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) have
applied, for the first time, the following new standards, amendments and
interpretations (the “new HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA, which are
effective for the Group’s financial statements beginning on 1 April 2010.

Conceptual Framework
HKFRS 1 (Revised)
HKFRS 1 Amendment

HKFRS 2 Amendment
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 39 Amendment
HK(IFRIC) - Int 17

Annual Improvements Project

HK - Int 5

HKAS 32 Amendment

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
First-time Adoption of HKFRSs
Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment
Transactions

Business Combinations

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Eligible Hedged ltems

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

Classification of Right Issues

e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

ARARMBEARATAREAD TAFEERNBUTHER UM A2 06 2 H1T
AN BUKER ERTARABA-F-FFNA-AFR2ZMFRE -

BaRER
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EBMSREENEIS (L181T)

EBSIDENE27S (£181])

EBSIHENE39S 21T

EB(BRVEHRELRBERS)
—EBE17S

EEYRHITH

EBRBESS

BRERITENEI2T 21T

MEH/E 2 B2ER

BRRAB B SRS EN
BERRPBEMSREEN -BEARNERA IR L 2
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ZRFRZ 21T
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2. Adoption of new and amended HKFRSs (cont’d)

The adoption of these amendments and interpretations had no material
financial impact on the Group’s results and financial position for the current
and prior accounting periods other than as explained below.

HK - Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

The interpretation clarifies that term loans that include a clause that gives the
lender the unconditional right to call the loans at any time (“repayment on
demand clause”) should be classified by the borrower as current liabilities.
The Group has applied HK - Int 5 for the first time in the current year. The
interpretation requires retrospective application.

In order to comply with the requirements set out in HK - Int 5, the Group
has changed its accounting policy on classification of term loans with a
repayment on demand clause. In the past, the classification of such term
loans were determined based on the agreed scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements. Under HK — Int 5, term loans with a repayment on
demand clause are classified as current liabilities.

As a result, bank loans that contain a repayment on demand clause with the
aggregate carrying amounts of HK$13,525,000 and HK$14,820,000 have
been reclassified from non-current liabilities to current liabilities as at 31
March 2010 and 1 April 2009 respectively. As at 31 March 2011, bank loans
(that are repayable more than one year after the end of the reporting period
but contain a repayment on demand clause) with the aggregate carrying
amount of HK$12,258,000 have been classified as current liabilities. The
application of HK — Int 5 has had no impact on the reported profit or loss for
the current and prior years.

Such term loans have been presented in the earliest time band in the
maturity analysis for financial liabilities that reflects the remaining contractual
maturities.

]

s LA | i s

RPFITREBUEREM SRS AN (&)

RPZEBVSREEN2BITREBRNAKAFTFER IEFE 2 LHK M HRR
ATHREAMSEW » FAMT o

EBRRESSUSHRZEIN - BRANESTRNEREEZRZES
RR2oH

ZBAE  BEBTHRAULTRHENAENEREERRZEZRZEH T KB
ERATMERRXRFTERDEXNRIAE - ARATAFEERNAETBEBES
S ABTERANAABRILREH -

ARFEEBRBRESSHAE  ARACBANEBETRNEREEZR 2 EHTK
ZARNSUTHE - 3 ZEEHRRATND XBEIRD AR LD EREE
REMEE - REFBEBESS  ZERARWIRXNAI AR °

TE-ZSHE=A=1+-HR-ESNFENA—H BEURNEREEZXRZET
BFH 55 R13,525,000/8 T % 14,820,0008 T * HEHIERIARES LR ARI R
e FZFE——F=A=1+—HB BOBRRATHE—FAEEME S TRENEX
BEEE)N12,258,0008 T EWAEARSI AR - EREBESSZNANEKE
ARFERSFIFEZRRHALEM o
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

2. Adoption of new and amended HKFRSs (cont’d)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009
Amendments to HKAS 17 Leases

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009, HKAS 17 Leases has
been amended in relation to the classification of leasehold land. Before the
amendments to HKAS 17, the Group was required to classify leasehold land as
operating leases and to present leasehold land as prepaid lease payments in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The amendments to HKAS
17 have removed such a requirement. The amendments require that the
classification of leasehold land should be based on the general principles set
out in HKAS 17, that is, whether or not substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of a leased asset have been transferred to the lessee.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in the amendments to
HKAS 17, the Group reassessed the classification of unexpired leasehold
land as at 1 April 2010 based on information that existed at the inception
of the leases. Leasehold land that qualifies for finance lease classification
has been reclassified from prepaid land lease payments to property, plant
and equipment and has been measured using the revaluation model on
retrospective basis. This resulted in prepaid lease payments with the carrying
amounts of HK$29,911,000 and HK$30,534,000 as at 31 March 2010 and 1
April 2009 respectively being reclassified to property, plant and equipment.

As at 31 March 2011, leasehold land that qualifies for finance lease
classification with the carrying amount of HK$29,288,000 has been included
in property, plant and equipment. The application of the amendments to
HKAS 17 has had no impact on the reported profit or loss for the current and
prior years.

m e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

RAFUREZBITERVSHEEN (%)
“EENFERUVSHEEN 2
BFERENEI7S (BITF)EE

ENZZENEEBMSHREEN 2Rt 2 — WD - BB LITENE17S (BITF)
AR ITHE LD XEHBIT « THETAZE  MBAERRLHD TIAGHE
BRI TELERRIK - EB2 U ENE17S (BITR)HBRBERERL DX
ZHERS BRI HMLAXRAEBLUTAVUE1I7S2-REN BEERREE
RERERMBE 2 LRNBHRNRREREBEZEBA  WREDXNBAERARELE

R -

AEACREFEQITENFE17S(BITR) P2 ERERX 0 REBEH RN
BRH BEFIGE-_SF—TFNA—ARBHERLI NS E - 2EHITIMEE - &
EAEEHFARMAARAI KBRS BRI AT F L HBARIAET 2 LAY
TTEREE HEHGEAEGMERITE - AXEeHTE-SE=A=1+—-HK
“EEAFHNA—-H2HIN29,911,00078 7t} 30,534,00058 ¢ °

T-E2-——F=ZA=1+-R NESXNAABARIXNER L HEGEENL -
BRI&EE  KE{EXN29,288,000/8 7T c BEEBLITEMNE7S (BITA) 2 NANAKE
AAFERSEFEZRBEH T -
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2. Adoption of new and amended HKFRSs (cont’d) 2.
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (cont’d)
Amendments to HKAS 17 Leases (cont’d)

The following tables disclose the adjustments that have been made in
accordance with HKAS 17 and HK - Int 5 to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2010 and consolidated
financial position as at 31 March 2010 and 1 April 2009 as previously
reported:

Property, plant and equipment Wl T BRIEE
Prepaid land lease payments TS £ 38 BT R
Interest-bearing borrowings - current liabilities EEBR—RANE
Interest-bearing borrowings — non-current liabilities BEER—I RN
Total effect on net assets R REN S
Retained earnings REEF

Revaluation reserve ECY 0

Total effect on equity PR E A

RAFITREBITERMSHREEN (%)
“ERNAFERUSREEN 2R H (%)
FERENEI7S (BITF)EE (L)

AEAERBEEBSCUANEI7TSREBERESSZBITNEZRNEBE-ZS-F
FZAZT-BRZZZNFOA-AZEEL2ARERRES WSRO RE LB
o FMHEIIMT :

At 31 March 2010

—E-FF=A=1+—H
Originally Amendment Amendment
stated to HKAS 17 to HK-Int 5 Restated
BB2itE
%175 BBIER
&5 (BT ) %55 El
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TBT BT TET
(Audited)
(B®R)
52,645 30,988 - 83,633
29,911 (29,911) - -
(47,340) - (13,525) (60,865)
(13,525) - 13,525 -
21,691 1,077 - 22,768
135,517 286 - 135,803
27,647 791 - 28,438
163,164 1,077 - 164,241
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

2. Adoption of new and amended HKFRSs (cont’d)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (cont’d)

Amendments to HKAS 17 Leases (cont’d)

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments

Interest-bearing borrowings - current liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings - non-current liabilities

Total effect on net assets

Retained earnings
Revaluation reserve

Total effect on equity

Except for the above, there have not been any other New Standards that

il T BRIEE
M LRI
ARER—RA
AEER—FRIAMH

MNEFAENEW

REEA
Bt

XA 3 B %0

have significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

e. bon holdings limited

BHRTERER QA

RAFUREBITERVSRE
“EERNEERUSHRSE

BELIENEI7S (BITA)HEZ(X)
At 31 March 2009

N (%)
TN Sz B (%)

“BBAEZA=+-H
Originally Amendment Amendment
stated to HKAS 17 toHK-Int5 Restated
BEBQITE
N%E175 EB1eR
JR 51 (BT A) %55 Rl
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET
(Audited)
(&)
45,734 27,636 - 73,370
30,534 (30,534) - -
(30,032) - (14,820) (44,852)
(14,820) - 14,820 -
31,416 (2,898) - 28,518
105,126 (2,898) - 102,228
22,154 - - 22,154
127,280 (2,898) - 124,382

BREBRFITREBITNEBMSRE

NAEAZMSHREBEAEMW

IS

BT REBUTNEEM SRS AN
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies 3. FELUHE
3.1 Basis of preparation 3.1 mHlEE
The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation REAZEMESREMRAZEEQUTHEREIINOT c RBERAN  ZZEEHET
of these financial statements are summarised below. These policies have FEEREFERYMRA - BXXAFITBELBITEAEVSREENRHEX AEH
been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise MERFX2EW(NE) FUMSREME_RE o

stated. The adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the
Group’s financial statements, if any, are disclosed in Note 2.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, HEMSHEUAERAERNREEE REEBERLTHREFRITEERT
except for leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong and derivative BEENFETIK -

financial instruments, which are measured at fair value.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions are used FEEE  RHLEMSHRERNEZA2UTHITRRERIE RELEM[MITTIUERE
in preparation of the financial statements. Although these estimates ERATE4RTHIZ2RENIRAMANEE  XGREREAR 2525 H1t
are based on management’s best knowledge and judgement of TR - PRESEHNIERERL  IHBRERGIUTNMFZHEMSEERAZT
current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from B TUWSHRERMEMPHEE -

those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

3.2 Basis of consolidation 3248 KEEE
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial GEMSREREERAAARFMERELADEEBE=A=T—A2UFHR* -
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 March
each year.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is MEARERFNNEBZEAGEH BFBREEAK - HEABDERHNALZA
transferred to the Group. They are excluded from consolidation from the BELELSEANK -
date the control cease.

3.3 Subsidiaries 3.3MEAT
A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company, directly or indirectly, has MEAREAAREESHEENEEENSREZRR 20l » #EH IS H
the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain RELF = o

benefits from its activities.

annual report 2011 -8 4‘



WS R &K OE
For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.3 Subsidiaries (cont’d)

In consolidated financial statements, acquisition of subsidiaries (other
than those under common control) is accounted for by applying the
purchase method. This involves the estimation of fair value of all
identifiable assets and liabilities, including contingent liabilities of the
subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless of whether or not they were
recorded in the financial statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition.
On initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are
included in the consolidated statement of financial position at their fair
values, which are also used as the bases for subsequent measurement in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group transactions and balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised profits but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investment in
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying amount
of the investment is reduced to its recoverable amount on an individual
basis. Results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

3.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold land and buildings,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the year in
which they are incurred.

m e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

3. FELUBR(H)
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ZEATE -

FTARAZMERARN MELABDZRADERFAENRBESTRIIK - K&
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.4 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and equipment over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date on which they
are available for use and after taking into account their estimated residual
values, using the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum.
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis and depreciated separately:

Over the shorter of
unexpired term of
lease or 50 years

Leasehold land and buildings

Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ depreciation methods, assets’ residual values and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their
expected useful lives or the term of the leases.

Leasehold land and buildings are stated at fair value at the date of
valuation less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Fair value is determined by independent valuations which are
performed periodically. Increases in valuation are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the revaluation reserve.
Decreases in valuation are first offset against increases on earlier
valuations in respect of the same asset and are thereafter charged to
profit or loss. Any subsequent increases are credited to profit or loss up
to the amount previously charged and thereafter to revaluation reserve.

The gain or loss arising on disposal is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Ml TERERZFZTARBRELEARASFZAPEREATRAFRRE KA
BREMHESRRZEREUATIMAUNEL AT RITIA - AL - T BRIER
EBOZAEREHATER  ZAEZBIZRASMEELREEEMHE
mEM2HABHIE -

HALHREF 50FHAREH
HEFH

(RBIEE )

HEDLRE 20%
R RERRE 10% —20%
"E 20%

REZHFB - RNEMERTERFRTEREARTRIYRBE(WER) °

BERAERZHFE AT  BATUIERFHIERFH(UERES)IT
8B
HEIwREFDREAEESA2AFERZTFTERRITBETRIIK - AFE
DREEHRIGETE - GEZMNESFIRIIANECLERS - ARITAEMR
EERN - RESHELARERN - PUINEHEESH AR ITARSBKF - £/
HENBERTITARBKD (LRAHRNBENR)REMEHEZA

Wil TEREZEREIHEREZWERTRIBREENSRIFRAS R
ZKEEZEREE  FERBEFHIANKARITX
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.4 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

3.5 Financial assets 3.5 MER=

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets other than
investments in subsidiaries are classified into loans and receivables and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition depending on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases of financial assets are recognised on trade date. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments expire or are transferred and substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed to assess whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists,
impairment loss is determined and recognised based on the classification
of the financial asset.

@ e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.5 Financial assets (cont’d)

()

(ii)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate and transaction cost.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss included a
derivative financial instrument that is a forward currency contract to
hedge its risk associated with foreign currency fluctuations.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
on the date the derivative contract is entered into and subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives that are not designated as
hedging instruments are accounted for as financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value are taken directly to profit or loss for the
year.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is objective
evidence that financial assets are impaired. Objective evidence of
impairment of individual financial assets includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

— Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

— It becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; and

- Significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.5 Financial assets (cont’d)

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from the group of financial assets.
Such observable data includes but not limited to adverse changes
in the payment status of debtors in the group and, national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the
group.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or
loss of the period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent that it does not result in a
carrying amount of the financial asset exceeding what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at
the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in which the reversal occurs.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.5 Financial assets (cont’d)

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)

Where the recovery of trade receivables is considered doubtful
but not remote, the impairment losses for doubtful receivables are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery of trade receivables is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables directly and any
amounts held in the allowance account in respect of that receivable
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

3.6 Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include interest-bearing borrowings, trade
and other payables.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.6 Financial liabilities (cont’d)

(i) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

(i) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Interest-bearing borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the interest-bearing
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Interest-bearing borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

3.7 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer (or
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
is initially recognised as deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss
on initial recognition of any deferred income.

m e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

3. FELUBR(H)
3.6 M55 (%)

(i) BIATRE kR B 57 1 K 5%

R IR EA R R 5 LA T WA 36 F LU BASRRR R ok 52
HRAIE -

(i) BEELE
EEERBRANELATFHENBREFEZRIRA)HIA - BEMERET UM
HRATE - IBRIM(IBRRZAR) ERENERE B2 ZMM » T3 KRR
MEZFERBETREKHEIA -

AEERAUARDIAGHEAAK  EARABTEX4RAEABEEHRER
REARRDT=AHIS -

JTMEEREY

MESEREAERTA(RERA)ATEARBAREERSARERERST
BZERXNEBRAMEZRAN  AFBABAEERTAZEY

MARAFELMSZER  BRZAFEDS TELREMNAKRRE IR SBE
KA - EHBREBINB AN EERTZXRT 2 AKRABKHIA © fd
TS S Y4 - T A S AR A B B B T IR KB AT X2 o



MNARR AN
BRI EEEE A IO (PrejLid s
RN &

L W mmims
# lerhgrs Tiadieg Lid SSSASENSLS

L ] pCempeepbid = AyiaBen Compasy i

[ — Mt Cox UM == [ 1000

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d) 3. FELUHE (&)
3.7 Financial guarantee contracts (cont’d) TMESERELN (&)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised if
and when it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will call
upon the Group under the guarantee and the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the current carrying amount i.e. the amount
initially recognised less accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

NERANZERAZBREFEZERFHTREKBE R TELE VS ER 2K
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3.8 Cash and cash equivalents 38UNERINECEE

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.
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3.9 Revenue recognition 3.9 & iA

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably and on the following basis:

Sale of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with time when the goods are
delivered to customers and title has been passed.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.
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3.10Foreign currency translation A0 TRE

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in the currency of Hong Kong dollars
(HK$), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W E W& M OE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.10Foreign currency translation (cont’d)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

On consolidation, the results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency (“foreign operations”) are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date;

(b) income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates;

(c) all resulting exchange differences arising from the above translation
and exchange differences arising from a monetary item that forms part
of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity and recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on disposal of foreign operations.

3.11Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost,
which comprises all costs of purchase and, where applicable, other
costs that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition, is calculated using the weighted average cost
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)

3.12Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews internal and external
sources of information to determine whether its property, plant and
equipment, investment in subsidiaries have suffered an impairment loss
or impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be
reduced. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
smallest group of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e.
cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately, except
where the relevant asset is carried at valuation in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount of the
asset or cash-generating unit that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversal of impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately, except where the relevant
assets is carried at valuation, in which case the reversal of impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

3.13Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is
or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE
3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.13Leases (cont’d)
(i) Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight line basis over the lease terms except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rental are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

(i) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the
amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments of such assets,
are included in property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as obligation under
finance leases.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance lease
agreements corresponds to those applied to comparable acquired
assets. The corresponding finance lease liability is reduced by lease
payments less finance charges.

3.14Employee benefits
Share-based employee compensation

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of any share-
based compensation are measured at their fair values. These are
indirectly determined by reference to the equity instruments awarded.
Their value is appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets).
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.14Employee benefits (cont’d)

Share-based employee compensation (cont’d)

All share-based compensation is recognised as an expense in profit or loss
over the vesting period if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity instruments granted vest
immediately unless the compensation qualifies for recognition as asset, with
a corresponding increase in the share option reserve in equity. If vesting
conditions apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting period, based
on the best available estimate of the number of equity instruments expected
to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of equity instruments that are expected to vest. Estimates are
subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the number of equity
instruments expected to vest differs from previous estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium.
After vesting date, when the vested share options are later forfeited or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution retirement
scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

3.15Accounting for income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those obligations to, or
claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period,
that are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated according to the
tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.15Accounting for income tax (cont’d)

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary
differences at the reporting date between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to be
carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on interests in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or the asset realised,
provided they are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in equity if they relate
to items that are charged or credited to other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.16Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to
be related to the Group if:

(@) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise significant influence
over the Group in making financial and operating policy decisions, or
has joint control over the Group;

T

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

®
&

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in which the
Group is a venturer;

(d) the party is a member of key management personnel of the Group or
the Group’s parent, or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant influence
of such individuals;

(e) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (a) or is an
entity under the control, joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

() the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the benefit of
employees of the Group or of any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in their
dealings with the entity.

3.17Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information reported to
the executive directors for their decisions about resources allocation to
the Group’s business components and for their review of the performance
of those components. The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are determined following
the Group’s major service lines.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d)
3.17Segment reporting (cont’d)
The Group has identified the following reportable segments:

Wholesales — importing and wholesale of architectural builders
hardware, bathroom and kitchen collections and
furniture to dealers, traditional hardware stores,
contractors and property developers.

Retails — sale of architectural builders hardware, bathroom and
kitchen collections and furniture through the Group’s
retail outlets.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of
the product and service lines requires different resources as well as
marketing approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried out at
arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segment results
under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that:

e finance costs
e income tax

e corporate income and expenses which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but deferred tax assets and corporate
assets which are not directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment are not allocated to a segment, which primarily
applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities and corporate liabilities
which are not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment, these include
deferred tax liabilities attributable to building.

m e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A
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4. Significant accounting judgements and estimates

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies which are
described in Note 3 to the financial statements, the management makes
various estimates based on past experience, future expectations and other
information.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods. The key sources affect the amount recognised in the financial
information as disclosed below.

4.1 Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The provisioning policy for bad and doubtful debts of the Group is based
on the evaluation of collectability of the trade receivables. A considerable
amount of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions of these
customers were to deteriorate and result in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowance will be required. At 31 March
2011, the carrying amount of receivables after provision for impairment
amounted to HK$102,046,000 (2010: HK$94,686,000).

4.2 Allowance for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for obsolete and
slow-moving inventories, the Group evaluates the ageing analysis
of inventories and compare the carrying value of inventories to their
respective net realisable values. A considerable amount of judgement
is required in determining such allowance. If conditions which have an
impact on the net realisable value of inventories deteriorate, additional
allowances may be required.

4. EEZ 2T AWK

TRHAMSHERAKEIIFEAEAXITHERN EEERFELELE - KARFTNR
H o BHE 1T o

RUHRERRRYLFLEFR Mot EIT 2B REBZHE - UETTZHER
A AEITRANRARRAAIEELW  WFEITRAKRBEYBHIADEIT « LT
NEMMSARAZHNETZEERAER :

4.1 RATKERE

AEHARTIKKZBRATREE TS - FREZSNBKANRAZRAEDF
REHABHE  UEHHEREF2IANGERSARKALIER A K
HEFMSFREBEEL  BISESKED  WARKRANMER - T-F——
FZR=1—R NKRFEHMEIKKN102,046,0008 T (=F—FF :
94,686,000587T) °

42 ERKE
EESNREHEERAFL2RBZ AN  FRARNER KR DN - RER
BReKAERERXZARIAMNE EERKBZZFEFEHAREHN - fZ07F
K2R ANE2RREL - TEFEHMRE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W E W& M OE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

4. Significant accounting judgements and estimates (cont’d)

4.3 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. Management’s assessment is
constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if
it becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
assets to be recovered.

4.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue and costs can be measured
reliably. During the year, the Group has completed a significant project
and recognised the project revenue which comprised of the main
contract amount and the additional orders revenue. As the work done
of the additional orders is still in quantity survey procedures, the final
revenue amount of the additional orders is not yet been confirmed.

In determining the revenue amount of the additional orders, the project
assessor of the Group would compare the expected revenue to the prices
of the past similar projects completed by the Group and the market
prices. And the Management, including architects and the Director, would
regularly review the total expected project revenue and adjust the figures
in time based on the foreseeable outcomes.

A e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

4, EE2 ST HE R T (%)
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4. Significant accounting judgements and estimates (cont’d) 4. EEZ ST HIM RIFM (%)
4.5 Estimate of fair values of property, plant and equipment 459l - TERIEEZAFERGE
Fair values were determines directly by reference to observable prices NP EZREEESZAN 2 ERMBREHE T A2 ARG S UH MG EE
in an active market or recent market transactions on arm’s length term EE  WBRBEKAESTHNEXERZSR °

or were estimated using other valuation techniques to ensure that the
carrying value does not differ materially from market value in subsequent

years.
5. Revenue and other income 5. B #RH MW
Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods, net of discounts and BLFREERzZAZERTILERES - FARUNZELTAREMBRRENT ¢
returns. Revenue and other income recognised during the year are as follows:
2011 2010
—E-——F —E-%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET THET
Revenue R
Sale of goods HREE 388,240 446,910
Other income H &
Interest income FEUW A 59 69
Net foreign exchange gain SCH U A % 1,265 12
Others Hith 664 726
1,988 807
390,228 447,717

annual report 2011 —E--FFR ‘



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W E W& M OE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

A e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

6. Segment information 6. DA
The executive directors have identified the Group’s two service lines as WESATHRARTEZSEHEARAEARNRS LTI RNEED I o
operating segments as further described in Note 3.17.
These operating segments are monitored and strategic decisions are made AEAEHRITZEEZD I HEALARBE2EZDBUSH ERBERE °
on the basis of adjusted segment operating results.
2011
—E2-—-F
Wholesale Retail Total
#x ZE &it
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TERT THER
Revenue W &=
From external customers WohE Pk 297,964 90,276 388,240
From other segments X o U & 43,673 - 43,673
Reportable segment revenue AL 3R 2 2 3 Uk 341,637 90,276 431,913
Reportable segment profit LRz BREHF 58,372 3,396 61,768
Bank interest income AME WA 13 - 13
Depreciation and amortisation of EMSR=IBRHEH
non-financial assets 1,565 4,579 6,144
Write off of trade receivables 7 e Tk =R B 5,345 = 5,345
Write down of inventories to net FHEMAZETZRN2E
realisable value 3,070 - 3,070
Reportable segment assets G 230,906 27,790 258,696
Additions to non-current segment HRNFERDDBEE=ZRE
assets during the year 1,550 8,644 10,194
Reportable segment liabilities I o = 5K 46,542 12,107 58,649
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6. Segment information (cont’d) 6. DTHRB (&
2010
—E-FF
Wholesale Retail Total
#x TE &1t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(E5) (E5) (E5)
Revenue Iy 22

From external customers X ANE U 363,654 83,256 446,910
From other segments X 7 2B UK &= 39,127 - 39,127
Reportable segment revenue LR 2 7 3P K & 402,781 83,256 486,037
Reportable segment profit LRz BELEHF 76,640 8,578 85,218
Bank interest income FE YA 33 - 33
Depreciation and amortisation of non-financial assets MK E=IIH R M 1,711 3,542 5,253
Impairment of trade receivables UL K FORLE 209 - 209
Write off of other receivables H 7 57 U F0 0B (B 819 - 819
Write down of inventories to net realisable value FHRBBZEOTI 2E 3,621 - 3,621
Reportable segment assets LRz D BE= 223,872 27,868 251,740

Additions to non-current segment HAFRDDBRF=ZARE
assets during the year 1,350 5,549 6,899
Reportable segment liabilities LR 2 2 3 AR 38,406 142 38,548
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6. Segment information (cont’d)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments reconcile to the

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W E W& M OE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE
6. 7EER (&)

ARAZALHRZEETHEUANEREAETEVSHENKNOT

Group’s key financial figures as presented in the financial statements as

follows:

Reportable segment revenues
Elimination of inter segment revenues

Group revenues

Reportable segment profit
Unallocated corporate income
Revaluation surplus on building
Unallocated corporate expenses
Finance costs

Profit before income tax

Reportable segment assets
Deferred tax assets
Other corporate assets

Group assets

Reportable segment liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Interest-bearing borrowings
Other corporate liabilities

Group liabilities

A e. bon holdings limited f##MBTRBER L A

ALz 7 2R W
0 B UK 2 41
SH W&

AR 2 2 #P W &

RO R BEBR A Yz
b & W &
ROKZBHRELER
%55 A

B 48 5 B
LHZH PR
BIEBTUA

Hip R BRE LA

5 7
L2 5 B0 0
RIS

BRER

R BRE LR ARG
5 1 8

2011 2010
—E——fF —B-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHExT
(restated)
(E5)
431,913 486,037
(43,673) (89,127)
388,240 446,910
61,768 85,218
1,320 36
- 3,009
(38,833) (34,722)
(589) (653)
23,666 52,888
258,696 251,740
2,049 1,570
135,337 91,532
396,082 344,842
58,649 38,548
2,273 4,760
41,181 60,865
5,519 4,390
107,622 108,563
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6. Segment information (cont’d)

Geographical information

Hong Kong (domicile) EB(EEELHI)
Mainland China B KB
Total a1t

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in Cayman
Islands where the Group does not have any activities, the Group has the
majority of its operations and workforce in Hong Kong, and therefore, Hong
Kong is considered as the Group’s country of domicile for the purpose of the
disclosures as required by HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”.

The geographical location of customers is based on the location at which the
services were provided or the goods delivered. The geographical location of
the non-current assets is based on the physical location of the asset.

During the year, HK$53,264,000 or 14% of the Group’s revenues depended
on a single customer in the wholesale segment (2010: HK$111,208,000 or
25%).

At the reporting date, 49% of the Group’s trade receivables was due from
this customer (2010: 35%).

2 EHE B (%)
Bt X 2 5 H &R
Revenue from external customers Non-current assets
WNEFEE R E =
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF —E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FER FER FER FHT
(restated)
(271)
318,262 372,086 127,166 82,892
69,978 74,824 1,348 741
388,240 446,910 128,514 83,633

ARRATHERDIM  TBLFSHRAER - ARAFTBZLFRATRTEE B
UREFEBUSHREEVESS (BITR)LEIXINKEATE  ARAZETEE L
WRNEE -

ERFHuXUERBERERSARMGTmAEMLENE  FRIRT2HELENS K
ZRTZRRUE -

HiW > 53,264,000 8 T REE—FF > HETAEARKEZ 214%(=ZF—
T 111,208,000/ * 25%) °

THER  ZEFZNBEKREAEEENBIKR49% (ZF—FF 1 35%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W E W& M OE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

7. Profit before income tax

This is stated after charging/(crediting):

Auditors’ remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised as expense
Depreciation

Net foreign exchange gain

Operating lease charges in respect of land and buildings
Provision for inventories, included in cost of sales
Provision for impairment of trade receivables
Loss on written-off property, plant and equipment
Write off of trade receivables

Write off of other receivables

Revaluation surplus on building

e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

. e

7. BRATGH AR A
HRBZME/ (T A) THERE -

2 B
BHRRA

A
N ON £ ]
BFEZHERAXN
EUHABRERAZRBERRE
R W2 D 5% L (B

Bl E 7 7= K

Fo7 WL % S50

L 57 50 T
b E £k U

2011
-5
HK$°000
FHT

560
236,281
8,029
(1,265)
36,565
3,070

2010
—s-%F
HK$’000
THET
(restated)
(E5)
640
279,824
6,836
(12)
32,117
3,621
209

819
(3,009)
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8. Finance costs

Finance costs
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable within five years
Finance charges on obligations under finance lease

9. Employee benefit expense

Salaries and allowances, including
directors’ emoluments (Note 10)

Share-based payment (Note 24)

Contributions to defined contribution plans

M55 AR

s 1 WL L g e

IFREBEEZBITARZAE
BRABARGSAE

HFeRBEN BRESME (KE10)

9. AIE/AXH

PABR 9 32 9 iz SR (Y iE24)
TEHUR R 1T % AR

2011 2010
2% —5-%%
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHT T
588 646

1 7

589 653

2011 2010
2% —2-%%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH7 T
43,082 39,614
2,047 =
1,331 1,215
46,460 40,829
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W E W& M OE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

10.Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

(a) Directors’ remuneration

10.EEREREB AR ZHM S

(a) EEM <

The aggregate amount of emoluments received or receivable by the
directors of the Company are as follows:

2011

Executive Directors
TSE Sun Fat, Henry
TSE Sun Po, Tony
LAU Shiu Sun
YICK Kai Chung
FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin

Independent Non-executive
Directors
LEUNG Kwong Kin, J. P.
WONG Wah, Dominic
WAN Sze Chung

A e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

ARBEBCURNB M RHAT :

—E——-fF
Salaries,

allowances Retirement Share-

Directors’ and benefits scheme based
fees in kind contribution payment Total

HER BRI BURR 6
EENS H 7 & K X 2RI &it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TERT THET THERT TERT TERT

RITES
IR 7 = 1,015 12 48 1,075
HWHE - 1,052 12 53 1,117
X 4B - 848 12 159 1,019
SB=R - 1,068 12 159 1,239
B iR - 1,649 - 106 1,755
BN - 653 12 58 723
MW IEHITES

RRABAFHL 108 - — - 108
g 108 - - - 108
REE 80 - - - 80
296 6,285 60 583 7,224



&1} E Bon Holdings Limied
E it ey By L SR SR

B gty L

. Unthgrs Tradieg Lid SESREESEES
| BanBestmagMatesieis Gempad LD
sy B g Do W £ |0

LU T B

My W0 [Piej g SrEes
W mmims T

= Wikgsiae

= AbiaBen Crmpanyi i
s 1§ B e

10.Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (cont’d)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (cont’d)

10.ESRELAEBEAAZHE (&)
(a) EEM € (%)

2010 —zm_3&
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement Share-
Directors’ benefits scheme based
fees in kind contribution payment Total
FER iR R 1T &I BARR 42
B Hfth R 5 {3 Xt 2R &if
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
THET TET TET FHE T THET
Executive Directors RITES
TSE Sun Fat, Henry IR 97 - 1,102 12 - 1,114
TSE Sun Po, Tony = - 1,168 12 - 1,180
LAU Shiu Sun X B # = 1,002 12 = 1,014
YICK Kai Chung SRR - 1,197 12 - 1,209
FUNG Cheuk Hang, Jackie B e = 1,848 = = 1,848
TSE Hon Kit, Kevin IR = 648 12 - 660
Independent Non-executive MWYERITES
Directors
LEUNG Kwong Kin, J. P. RRELFHL 108 - - - 108
WONG Wah, Dominic g 108 - - - 108
WAN Sze Chung B AR 80 - - - 80
296 6,965 60 - 7,321
No director has waived or agreed to waive their emoluments in respect of FHRE-S——GER-S-SE-A=-+-ALKEE HALESESHERFAEHK

the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010.

AREzME
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W E W& M OE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

10.Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (cont’d) 10.EEREREBEAAZHE (&)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EUBEEFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group REATFAFEENANESFMAL BR=ZF(ZE-—ZFF . =ZR)EF ' ZE
for the year include three (2010: three) directors whose emoluments EyHMEERBMTLERZANA - HBFHR(ZZE—ZF . HR)ATZHEm
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the T <

remaining two (2010: two) individual are as follows:

Basic salaries and allowances BEXHESRIEMN

Retirement scheme contributions BRI R R

Share-based payment BURR 7 243 2 K

The emoluments are within the following bands: MENFTIEE :

HK$Nil - HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 T AT
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 7t £1,500,0005%8 7T

e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

2011 2010
e —E-%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FET
2,387 2,652

32 -

24 24

2,443 2,676

Number of individuals

A¥
2011 2010
—B——-fF —B-FF
2 2
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11.Income tax expense M. EHAX
(a) Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2010: (a) EBAEGHIAANFEE 2 MBIt EREFNIEZE16.5%(ZF—FF : 16.5%) 2H
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. The income Rt o THEAREMNE([HRE]) REBINEE 2 BRI LE R {1 BIRH
tax provision in respect of operations in the People’s Republic of China BHREXAENRKEAZHERRBERTEN  2BRRBOAM T EZNERT
(“PRC”) and overseas is calculated at the applicable tax rates on the BU 2 kE 2BREREMR  LWERAZNBEREITE -

estimated assessable profits for the year based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

2011 2010
—E-—F —E-ZF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FEx THERT
Current tax REEH
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBFEB
Current year NEE 2,091 6,464
Over provision in prior year FEBAKZ (29) (267)
2,062 6,197
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax HECLFEMREH
Current year rEE 4,585 2,403
6,647 8,600
Deferred taxation (Note 22) i FE B (M E22) (479) 57
Tax expense for the year HARBHAX 6,168 8,657
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W % | & W E

For the year ended 31 March 2011

BZ-F——F=A=1+—-HLEE

11.Income tax expense (cont’d) 11.

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense

Profit before income tax BR AT 15 B4 8 A
Income tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% FEREEB M
(2010: 16.5%) (=2-5%

Over provision in prior year EEBAKE
Tax exempt revenue AT BRI WA
Non-deductible expenses FAERSHEA
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses FAUFER
Unrecognised temporary differences RBNZENE
Unrecognised tax losses RN Z B 5
Effect of different tax rate of PRC subsidiaries THEZHEL
Others Hith

Tax expense for the year REEHME H

The amount of tax relating to each component of other comprehensive
income can be summarised as follows:

Exchange gain on translation of financial MEBRIIMELT
statements of foreign operations MEMEZMWLHELESR

Surplus on revaluation of properties held for own use Yl B 1 e &R

Other comprehensive income Hit £ mk s

A e. bon holdings limited f##MBTRBER L A

BT X (%)
(b) BLINFF % 2 5 Ik
The Group
R
2011 2010
—F-——% —E-2F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TET
(restated)
(E31)
23,666 52,888
BHiI%E16.5%
116.5%) 1t & 3,904 8,726
(29) (267)
(412) (358)
M3 HA 904 303
HINB % T i - (256)
H (62) (530)
il 238 139
BAANEHEZERZE M 1,625 817
- 83
6,168 8,657
EXHMEHABRRARD D 2B HMOT :
2011 2010
—E——% —E-%F
Before tax Tax Net of tax Before tax Tax Net of tax
R % Bl B X RS BR A5 B B X =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FTERT TER TER TE T TE T THET
829 - 829 326 - 326
42,718 2,487 45,205 7,191 (907) 6,284
43,547 2,487 46,034 7,517 (907) 6,610
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12.Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 122. KR REIRAEFE AN S EF
The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company AAFABREFEARNSSTHR,791,0008 T (=ZF—FF : 237,000 TEA) - #E
includes a loss of HK$1,791,000 (2010: profit of HK$237,000) which has been FARADBE-E——F=ZA=+—BLEEEMSHRRINLE -
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2011.
13.Dividends 13. R &
(a) Dividends attributable to the year (@) IANETEFEEZRE
2011 2010
—F——-F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT TR
Interim dividend of HK1 cent (2010: HK2 cents) per share PHRESRIBI(ZE—FF : 27840) 3,003 4,620
No special interim dividend (2010: HK1.5 cents) per share HARHREEROBW(ZF—FF : 1.5%84l) - 3,465
Proposed final dividend of HK3 cents (2010: HK3 cents) BUR R 21 R B RR 38l
per share (Note) (ZZ-—FF : 38L) (KE) 9,009 6,930
Proposed special bonus dividend of HK2 cents (2010: nil) BUR s B L7 AR B 8 BR 278 4L
per share (Note) (ZE—FF : k) (fF) 6,006 -
18,018 15,015
Note: A special bonus dividend of HK2 cents (2010: nil) per share amounting to M : FHREB EBLURBUURABIIFRESRETER2BW(ZF—FF . k) BHI4T
HK$6,006,000 (2010: nil) and a final dividend of HK3 cents (2010: HK3 cents) per FIIRE 576,006,000 T (=B —FF T )RAHRESREERIBIW(=ZZE—FTF : 38
share amounting to HK$9,009,000 (2010: HK$6,930,000) have been proposed by i) » BARHEIRR B 59,009,000 T (=S —FF : 6,930,000587T) c AUERREAKBRETF N
the directors after the reporting date. The proposed dividends are not accounted for BREBEKRSHAEFTAN o
until it has been approved at the annual general meeting.
(b) Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, approved D) IANBI—FEZRE > FTAFEBIRIKK
and paid during the year
2011 2010
—E——fF —B-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT TET
Special interim dividend in respect of the previous EAMBEEZEAIHHRESGR.52
financial year, of HK1.5 cents per share (2010: nil) (ZB—FF : I) 3,465 -
Final dividend in respect of the previous financial year, of EANMBEE 2 KRR ESRIBAL
HK3 cents per share (2010: 2.5 cents) (ZE—FF : 2.5%E4) 6,930 5,775
10,395 5,775

annual report 2011 —E--FFR A‘



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W E W& M OE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

14.Earnings per share 14. R EF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the Group’s profit BRERGEHNDBRERFEEARERAEF17,498,0008 T (=F—FF : 44,231,000
for the year of HK$17,498,000 (2010: HK$44,231,000, restated) and on the B BF)REKNE R{TE®R300,300,000 (ZF—FF : 231,000,0008% ) it
outstanding number of 300,300,000 shares in issue (2010: 231,000,000 g o
shares) during the year.
No diluted earnings per share is presented as the effect of the potential HTEEEREEER  MALTHRESRMEZEF -
ordinary share is anti-dilutive.
15.Property, plant and equipment 15. 90~ T BRIEZ
The Group KEH
Land and buildings Furniture,
under long-term Leasehold fixtures Construction
leases (Note) improvements and equipment Motor vehicle in progress Total
REKBHEAZ il EL
T R (FfHE) il RERBE "E EEIR &1t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THExT THET THET THET T
(restated) (restated)
(&%) (E751)
At 1 April 2009 F-EZAENA—H
Cost AR 1,779 38,295 15,564 1,710 - 57,348
Valuation fhiE 58,850 - - - - 58,850
Accumulated depreciation 21t (226) (27,015) (14,143) (1,444) - (42,828)
Net book amount TR % {E 60,403 11,280 1,421 266 - 73,370

A e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A
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The Group

Net book value

At 1 April 2009
Acquisition of subsidiary
Additions

Revaluation
Depreciation

At 31 March 2010

At 31 March 2010

Cost

Valuation

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Net book value

At 1 April 2010
Additions

Revaluation

Eliminated on written off
Depreciation

At 31 March 2011

At 31 March 2011

Cost

Valuation

Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

15.Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

TKE#E
ToERNAFNA-A
el =N

#ig

B

iIA

F-2-®E=A=1-H

FT-E2-FF=A=+—8H
BZS

f&{E

R1t#rIH

TKE2E

WESE
F-2-BEMA-A
572

Bt

ik

el
F-®-—F=A=1-H
F-®-—F=A=1-A
AR

fife

RitHie

TKE#E

15. 90 ~ T BERIRE (&)

iy 3
Land and buildings Furniture,
under long-term Leasehold fixtures Construction
leases (Note) improvements and equipment Motor vehicle in progress Total
REKBHEAZ HE X
T R (FfE) il Es KERIEE AE EEIR &1t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHEx FiEx FEx FEx Fix
(restated) (restated)
(E51) (E751)
60,403 11,280 1,421 266 - 73,370
- - 89 - - 89
- 5,405 1,405 - - 6,810
10,200 - - - - 10,200
(1,583) (4,234) (940) (79) - (6,836)
69,020 12,451 1,975 187 - 83,633
1,779 43,700 17,058 1,710 - 64,247
67,502 - - - - 67,502
(261) (31,249) (15,083) (1,523) - (48,116)
69,020 12,451 1,975 187 - 83,633
69,020 12,451 1,975 187 - 83,633
- 8,644 770 - 780 10,194
42,718 - - - - 42,718
= S @ = = @
(1,884) (5,248) (818) (79) - (8,029)
109,854 15,847 1,925 108 780 128,514
- 52,344 17,810 1,710 780 72,644
109,854 - - - - 109,854
- (36,497) (15,885) (1,602) - (53,984)
109,854 15,847 1,925 108 780 128,514

annual report 2011 —E--FFR A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WS R & K OE

15.Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

The Group
Note:

The leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong were revalued by Memfus Wong Surveyors
Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers, on 31 March 2011 which was based on
recent market transactions and were then adjusted for specific conditions relating to the land and
buildings.

Bank borrowing is secured on the land and building for the carrying amount of the leasehold
land and buildings in Hong Kong would have been approximately HK$60,000,000 (2010:
HK$35,000,000 restated) stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

16.Interests in subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost

e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

FEmky  BRE

15. 9l ~ T BERIRE (&)

KEH
B OE

TEBZHR I REF T -E——F =A==+ - AEABVTUAEREFENITFTARAAERHER
NERGEEEMR -

RTERUYLERRE RARLIHEEFRAARERRUTFTERAESHRITE  HULHKEEN
60,000,000/ T (=F—F % : 35,000,000/ * E5) °

16. K& 2 A X &

2011 2010

e i —g-%%
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERL T
90,917 90,917




4] E BonHoldings Limied WAHEENNS D

BRI EEEE A IO (PrejLid s
L emmamuemen | msses Pajid ® .
AEEAEEREEN = ViAguiaees s
pGompaarlin = KyiaBeaCemg

Tl
Mty O L = LT | e

16. Bt /& 2 AW & (%)
FToE-—FZAZ+-HZETENBRARARBMT :

16.Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

Details of the major subsidiaries at 31 March 2011 are as follows :

Place of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

Equity interest

Principal activities

Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital Legal structure held and place of operation
ERTRBRKRE,
HiE AR B EMRZER, R SEA R A EELEM R 5 RA R = FELSRE LML
Interest held directly:
BEEEENE
E. Bon (BVI) Holdings British Virgin 50,000 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Investment holding
Limited Islands US$1 each liabilities in Hong Kong
RELLLZE S 50,0008 BIR15= T2 EBAR BRIFEAF TEBERTIER
Interests held indirectly:
BERE NG -
Asia Bon Company Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Property holding
ERIM) R-EBEBRAA BB HK$1,000 each liabilities in Hong Kong
100/% = % 1,000/ T 2 E B iR BRFEAT TEBENLES
E. Bon Building Materials Hong Kong 6,000 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Importing and sale of
Company Limited &5 HK$1,000 each liabilities architectural builders
TRFITEFRMABRAA 6,000/% & i% 1,00078 7T 2 E & A% BRFEAT hardware and bathroom
collections in Hong Kong
TEBHORHEEFRESR
NENRE S-S
Right Century Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Retail of bathroom
BAERA R 7 HK$1 each liabilities accessories and decoration
1,000 Z 1B T 2 Z @R BRIELH materials in Hong Kong
TEBZEREM M REHTE
Sunny Building and Hong Kong 6,000 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Retail of architectural

Decoration Materials
Company Limited
FHEMME RS T AERRLAT

7/

HK$1,000 each
6,000A% =% 1,000/ 7Tt = @A

liabilities

BRIRELH

annual report 2011
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W E W& M OE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

Name of subsidiary

16.Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

) =NEIE=E EMRIER R

Interest held indirectly: (cont’d)

EERFENRE | (&)

Shanghai Tech Pro PRC
International Trading B
Company Ltd.

EBBRERRSBRARE

Twinwood Venture Limited British Virgin

Islands
RELLLZE S

H20O (Pro) Limited Hong Kong

K ZBER PR H] =8

Massford Holdings Limited British Virgin

Islands
RELLLZE S

Techpro Trading Limited Hong Kong

EREMAZERAF =B

Massford (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong

EE(BEB)BERLA BE

e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

16. /& 2 AN & (&)

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital
ERTRHAERE
SRR A

US$300,000
300,000% 7T

1 ordinary share of US$1 each
1REBRIETZEBR

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
2REBR1IB T2 EBR

1 ordinary share of US$1 each
1REBRIEZTZEBR

1,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
1,000 ER1B T2 Z@EB

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
10,0008 B AR 178 T 2 ZiEAR

Legal structure

EELSH

Wholly foreign owned
enterprise
o]

Company with limited
liabilities
BRFEAT

Company with limited
liabilities

BRFELH

Company with limited
liabilities
BRFEAT

Company with limited
liabilities
BRFEAT

Company with limited
liabilities
BRFEAF

Equity interest
held

BI 5 AR A< AR 2

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities
and place of operation

FRLHFREUBR

Importing and sale of
architectural builders
hardware and bathroom
collections in the PRC

THREH#HORHEEEZRNAEER
A%

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
TEBERAER

Importing and sale of
bathroom collections
in Hong Kong
THEBHOREEDL A EE

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
TEBERTIER

Importing and sale of
architectural builders
hardware

TEBHORHERRLE

Supplying architectural
builders hardware and
bathroom collections
for property development
in Hong Kong

THEERNERAEESR IAEE
St/ N 328
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16.Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 16. M B 2 AN & (&)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

Equity interest

Principal activities

Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital Legal structure held and place of operation
BERITRBRKRE,
Fit /8 A R AR SEMRIER R SEA R A EELEM RS RAR &= FELSRE LS
Interest held indirectly: (cont’d)
EERFENRE (&)
Bonco Ironmongery Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Importing and sale of
RERESEMERAE 7 HK$1 each liabilities architectural builders
10,000/ B 1B T 2 HiEBAR BRFAENE hardware in Hong Kong
FTERBHORMERRNES
Kitchen (Pro) Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Importing and sale of
Bz @ERATE 7 HK$1 each liabilities kitchen fittings
1,000 1B T 2 ZEAR BRIELT] in Hong Kong
FTHEEHORHEFRER
D.LY. Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Handling of the human
7 HK$100 each liabilities resources planning and
2R ERR100/E T 2 E B BRIELE development activities
of the Group
WBAREAA D REEE
Sanfield Properties Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Company with limited 100% Property holding in the PRC
FEELERAT B8 2REBRIB T2 EER liabilities THEFEDLEES
BRFEAT
Tech Pro (China) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Company with limited 100% Investment holding
ER(PFE)ERLE B 2IRER1EBTZ2EER liabilities in the PRC
BRFEAT THEERRER
Bonlex Properties Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares of Company with limited 100% Property holding in the PRC
HAEWBRAR B HK$1 each liabilities FHREENLIFE

10,0008 B AR 178 T 2 ZiEAR

BRFELT

annual report 2011 —E--FFR A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STAT

W E W& M OE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

16.Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)

Name of subsidiary
EPNGIE 7

Interest held indirectly: (cont’d)

B EFARE  (4)

Shanghai Techpro Interior
Decoration Company
Limited

EBBRENEMBRARE

MIA Limited

China Reconstruct Design
Limited
BiRITEIA (LE) BRAF

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

EMRIER, MR
PRC
hE
Hong Kong
7
PRC
R

17.Due from/(to) subsidiaries

EMENTS

16. /& 2 AN & (&)

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/
registered capital
ERTRHAERE
SRR A

RMB5,000,000
5,000,000 A B

1 ordinary share of HK$1 each
1RER1IBTZEER

US$140,000
140,000 T

Legal structure

EELSH

Wholly foreign owned
enterprise
o]

Company with limited
liabilities

BRIRELTH

Wholly foreign owned
enterprise
Nt

Equity interest
held

BI 5 AR A< AR 2

100%

100%

100%

17. B/ () B 2 8 2 3|

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

18.Inventories

Finished goods

A e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

18. B #

EZRIATRE - TAERZBHER o

Principal activities
and place of operation

FRLHFREUBR

Undertaking interior
decoration and project
management for property
development in the PRC

TFHRERHBZERIRITREmRS

Importing and sale of
architectural builders
hardware and furniture
in Hong Kong

TEBHORHEERRES

Providing consultation
services in interior design

FrhERBEMRITRS
2011 2010
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TR FBx
90,344 84,742
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19.Trade and other receivables 19. R7 U Ik X 2 L 4th B 15X 31
Details of the trade and other receivables as at 31 March 2011 are listed HEZE——F=-A=+-HNUKRFEMNKRZITERNT :
below:
The Group Company
¥/ 7 RAF
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——-fF —E-FF —E——-fF —F-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THER TE T THERT TE T
Trade receivables IS 45 T 5R 103,269 95,909 - -
Less: provision for doubtful debts B RIKE & (1,223) (1,223) - -
102,046 94,686 = _
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H fth BRI
B4 RN 29,145 28,293 43 148
131,191 122,979 43 148
The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of provisions for doubtful debts) F4EER > N (NBRRKKESR) KB MAT -
at the reporting date is as follows:
The Group
AEH
2011 2010
—F2—-—-F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$’000
TERT THET
0 - 30 days 0Z 30H 63,688 50,222
31 - 60 days 312 60H 7,314 13,114
61 — 90 days 61%Z 90H 11,154 7,797
Over 90 days i 90H 19,890 23,553
102,046 94,686
The majority of the Group’s sales are with credit terms of 30 to 90 days. In RERAZHEERHAE 2 A30F90H ' EARIBZANERBEKERZ120

some cases, customers may be granted an extended credit period of up to B HARBE0RENAERARIAFRRELFHLT ©
120 days. Certain balances over 90 days are on letter of credit or document
against payment.
annual report 2011 —E--FFR ‘



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W % | & KO

For the year ended 31 March 2011

BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

19. /37 W I T B2 B ftb B SR (42)
RW KRB EKEZEHAT ¢

19.Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

The movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables is as

follows:
2011 2010
—E——fF —B-=F
HK$°000 HK$°000
TERT FHExT
Balance at 1 April THA—H 1,223 1,014
Provision for impairment loss charged to the profit or loss ERIARESH = 209
Balance at 31 March E=H=+F—H 1,223 1,223

At each reporting date, the Group reviews receivables for evidence of
impairment on both an individual and collective basis. As at 31 March
2011, the Group has determined trade receivables of HK$1,223,000 (2010:
HK$1,223,000) as individually impaired. Based on this assessment, no (2010:
HK$209,000) impairment loss has been recognised. The impaired trade
receivables are due from customers experiencing financial difficulties that
were in default or delinquency of payments.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are not impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired
1 - 30 days past due

31 — 60 days past due

61 — 90 days past due

Over 91 days past due

REBHRBE
BHE1-30R
BHf531-60H
BHf561-90H
BHEE1A

A e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

FERER > ZEAUANRBEEAER I LBKZOREERT - FZF——F=H
=+—8 ' AEABINNKIEKT T 21,223,0008 T (=F—FF : 1,223,000 )
EERME B AEERE(ZE—FF 209,000 ) AN AEFMBERS
BHRNARRMELRELS - MEUKFBRERBTESRERIEXNKIA

ERETRZRE MRz KR HMT

The Group
¥ 3

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TET
62,501 71,133
7,950 4,548
11,869 1,384
2,737 660
16,989 16,961
102,046 94,686
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19.Trade and other receivables (cont’d)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a wide range
of customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are expected to be fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

20.Trade and other payables

Trade payables
Accrued charges and other payables

R A T R
BRIt %% P B H At B2 A R

Included in the trade and other payables of the Group are trade payables with
the following ageing analysis:

0 - 30 days 0% 30H

31 - 60 days 31%Z 60H
61 — 90 days 612 90H
Over 90 days B 90H

Mty O L = LT | e

19. 57 U Ttk 7% e EL b 57 W R (%)

EEREREFHBEZNRRARBEETSFAEARRFERERZEF - RELHE
Z¥ HTEXZNURAZERREALTEARD - BRETLHKE - UHER
EREZSEBRBMELRELRE - FEAATREZSEREREARKTR

20. B 13 K R E At B A FRIN

The Group Company
R EH PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF —E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TERT FHE T TER FHE T
32,398 25,981 - -
26,718 12,961 35 74
59,116

38,942 35 74

BEEASANMSIKAREMMATRAR 2 NAKRIKR2AOT :

2011 2010
—E——-fF —F-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER THER
28,635 23,418
510 461

491 128

2,762 1,974
32,398 25,981

annual report 2011
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W E W& M OE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

21.Interest-bearing borrowings

Bill payables and trust receipt loans, unsecured R 48 B £ FE WL oiE BT
Other bank loans, unsecured Hits TR 2 R 1 ﬁiﬂ
Other bank loans, secured Hits B A 2 RITHR
Obligation under finance leases BAEBRRS

Current portion TR
Non-current portion 3ER 3 1 B

All bills payables and trust receipt loans are wholly repayable within one year.

The bills payables and trust receipt loans are denominated in functional
currencies of the relevant group entities and carry at effective interest rate
at 1.77% p.a.. Other bank loans bear interest at prime rate minus 2% p.a.,
prime rate minus 2.5% p.a. or HIBOR plus 0.6% p.a..

A e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

2. EEER

The Group
AEH

2011 2010 2009
—g——# —z-3% —2BnE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TERT THET THET
» TR 23,219 39,603 26,697
4,429 6,457 2,037
13,533 14,798 16,056
- 7 62
41,181 60,865 44,852
2011 2010 2009
—g——# —5-3% —EENE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER TET TET
(restated) (restated)
(E%) (E%)
41,181 60,865 44,852

41,181 60,865 44,852

FENRRERERBREARAT - FAZHRER

K‘h‘miﬁ}iﬂ*iﬂﬂﬁﬁ AAREAX 2B M2 XGFEFNEN1.77% » HtbRT
RASERNERERERE2% » FH2.5%HE LHFEMN0.6%E = o
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21. EEER (&%)

BE-E-——S-A-t+-RAFKHAARE2BEEAHENT :

21.Interest-bearing borrowings (cont’d)

At 31 March 2011, the interest-bearing borrowings of the Group were
repayable as follows:

The Group
EH

2011 2010 2009
—T——fF —E-=F —ETNE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER TE T FHExT
(restated) (restated)
(E75) (E5)
Within one year —F K 28,923 47,340 30,032
In the second year E-FNR 1,287 1,281 1,264
In the third to fifth year E=FERZERF 3,934 3,909 3,851
After the fifth year BFENUE 7,037 8,335 9,705
41,181 60,865 44,852
Less: Provision due with one year under current liabilities & : AT —ERNEE 2R 5 7tk = - -
41,181 60,865 44,852

Obligations under finance leases: BMARBEHEMRS :

Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments

RXAER BEREGRZIAE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF —g——F —Z-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TERT THET TER THRT
Amount payable: Rif$ €&
Within one year —-FR - 8 = 7
- 8 - 7
Future finance charges ARBARA - 1) - -
Present value of lease obligations HERSIE = 7 - 7

annual report 2011 —E--FFR A
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

22.Deferred taxation

The major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Group and
movements thereon during the current and prior year are as follows:

22. % FE B M

AEATAFEREFUIICEEBERTAGR AT REZRIMOT :

Deferred tax liabilities 1% FE B I £ 43R
Accelerated tax depreciation Revaluation of properties Total
mEHEHIA Ml E £ &1t
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
—F-—fF i =3 A =F-—-F  -F-FF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TER THET TER THET TER THER
At beginning of the year FE &% - - 4,760 3,853 4,760 3,853
(Credited)/Charged to other comprehensive income (itA) /MER@EKF = = (2,487) 907 (2,487) 907
At 31 March F=B=+—8 - - 2,273 4,760 2,273 4,760
Deferred tax assets % FE B IR =
Tax losses Others Total
BESH Hitr &1t
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—-F —2-%F -2--fF —2-%F -E--fF —2-ZF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TER T TER THET TER TERx
At beginning of the year FE &% - - 1,570 1,627 1,570 1,627
Credit/(Charged) to profit or loss (Note 11) A/ (NE) Rk (fE11) 699 - (220) (57) 479 (57)
At 31 March F=H=1—8 699 - 1,350 1,570 2,049 1,570

As at 31 March 2011, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses of HK$4,900,000 (2010: HK$3,455,000) as
it is not probable that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax
losses have no expiry date under current tax legislation.

As at 31 March 2011, the aggregate amount of temporary differences associated
with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries, for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised, is assessed to be immaterial (2010: Nil). No deferred
tax liabilities have been recognised in respect of these differences because the
Group is in a position to control the dividend policies of these subsidiaries and
it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

A e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

FZE-——F=ZA=1+—8  2EHANARUNNBUFRATH2AERBERRNE~YH
4,900,000 T (ZFE—F 5 : 3,455,000/8 ) DHTARE AR E G ENX RS
FTHEFEEAATH R ZESHRONERERN - BREIANHESEKA  ZEHMTHRE
REHA -

FTZ2-——FZA=+-B EXAPEEANENER EEBMARKEIA) B
EHHAEERN(ZZR-—FF %) ATARARBEHMELATNREBE - %
EFEAFUHBRASWER - FULEERITFRBEIA
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23.Share capital
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each BREF1BT2EER
At 1 April and 31 March FTOHAE—BER=A=1+—H
Issued and fully paid: ERTRARE
Ordinary share at HK$0.1 each BREEIBTZEBR
At 1 April THMA—H
Bonus issue of share (Note) KATARR (KHE)
At 31 March FT=A=+—8H

Note:  Pursuant to the annual general meeting held on 9 September 2010, bonus issue of shares
on the basis of three shares for every ten shares held was approved. 69,300,000 bonus
shares were issued under the bonus issue and the amount HK$6,930,000 was capitalised
from the Company’s share premium account.

The bonus shares were credited as fully paid and rank pari passu with the then existing
shares in all respects.

24.Share-based employee compensation

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 9
September 2010 whereby the directors of the Company are authorised, at
their discretion, to invite certain of its directors and employees to take up
options at HK$10 consideration to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
options vest after one year from the date of grant and then exercisable within
a period of two years. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in equity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options
other than by issuing the Company’s ordinary shares.

23. i 2
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF

Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$’000
B 43 %k B THER vk 4] TET
1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
231,000,000 23,100 231,000,000 23,100
69,300,000 6,930 - -
300,300,000 30,030 231,000,000 23,100

fiE: BEAQTATFS-ZFTENANAXTZREBAEAS  EMERBEETREOAR=ZRIFANR S
ZEEXTANRS - HEA1769,300,000 IFIER 4% » 6,930,000 T E B A2 &R D E N K
BRBX -

BXRAFRGEARIMEAR - H SN2 AARODER ST AN ZARENES

24, LR 3 2R3

ARBTZ2-FFANANARABBENIL - ES2AHEREL LT ZEFTRT
EXsRBEANBNAQESRAEI0BT2EBR - REZWRNNTHL BH
BT=AREBUREARE - BMNIRNAANBIRA AR 2 EBRERM

FEARDXA2RAFTMEUNGZEE - RATALAZEBRR G - AEHAH
TERFRTEREMNEREFTZEMRN
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24.Share-based employee compensation (cont’d)

Share options and weighted average exercise price are as follows for the
reporting periods presented:

Outstanding at 1 April THA— B = RTER R
Granted R F 1 B

Outstanding at 31 March FZR=+—-HERTEHBERN
Exercisable at 31 March F=B=+—Ba{TEHNERX

The options outstanding at 31 March 2011 had exercise prices of HK$0.814
(2010: HK$ nil) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of three
years (2010: nil).

On 27 January 2011, the Company granted 7,700,000 (2010: nil) share
options to certain of its directors and employees for $10 consideration at an
exercise price of HK$0.814 (2010: HK$ nil) per share.

ﬁ e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

24, UG A 2RI (&)

BERBEZN cMBRRRAXMNFEITEONMT :

As at 31 March 2011 As at 31 March 2010

F-E——f=A=+—-H FT-E-Z5=A=1+—H
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Number price Number price
I A
%A TEN #A TEM
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER TET
7,700 0.814 - -
7,700 0.814 - -

FoB--FSAS+-B  HATEZWRRGENH0.814ET (ZB—FF :
E)  AMATHBTANFRN=E (Z2-FF %)

FTZE-—5—-B=Z+ttB XQRAEKEF7,700,000lRNFARAFNESRK A
T KN EBH10BR  TENNEREEBRC.814EBL (ZB-—FF %) -
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24, RGBT (%)
MR RIEE LT
(i) BB

24.Share-based employee compensation (cont’d)
Details of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(i) Purpose

The purpose of this Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) is to give
Employees and other Eligible persons who have, in the opinion of Option
Scheme Committee, made contribution to the development and growth

AWBRBUR (WD EEARAARANTMNEZRASUNINAEAZ LS R
BRREKEFHABZEMERRSSATRENSESERQAZRN - Witk 5
EHMARAHAERARHIRM - ARBLFSRA  AEE T HEEHEL

of the business of the Group an opportunity to participate in the equity SR ZRBPRE - XEAEAEBENAEAEKENEZRT °
of the Company and the Scheme serves to encourage and to provide
incentive or reward to its Grantees improving the business performance
and let him/her benefit from his/her helping to contribute the business
success. This enables the Group to retain valued staff for the growth of

the Group.

(i) ERESEAL
FHEA(ATREAHENSAEBEAARREAGZENEAGRAZS R
F) - AEACARAQARAZEAERATES (BERLFHRTES)  AEHAMT
AR R A B Z R B AR =k ) 2N 5 AT a0 B 3R 28 =) 42 4 L ) PR 55 R A R SRk EL At i R
TEZEMAL

(ii) Eligible participants

Any Employee (who must be in a senior management position at the date
of grant and has been in the employ of the Company or its subsidiaries
for at least 5 years), any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive director) of any member of the Group, any shareholder
of any member of the Group or any person who provides consultancy
services or research development or other technological support to any
member of the Group.

annual report 2011 —E--FFR A



e

.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W E W& M OE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

24.Share-based employee compensation (cont’d)

(iii) Total number of shares available for issue

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company as may be implemented in future shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval
of the Share Option Scheme on 9 September 2010.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme was 23,100,000 Shares (including 7,700,000
Shares subject to options that have been granted but not yet lapsed or
exercised), which represented 7.69% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

(iv) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised, cancelled or
outstanding options) to each Grantee in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company at the time the
Option is granted to the Grantee.

Options granted to a substantial Shareholder or an independent non-
executive director in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share
capital in issue for the time being and with a value in excess of HK$5
million must be approved by the shareholders of the Company.

A e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A

24, R B XH 2 R (%)
([T RT2RE B

FAAT REAR 4 U R B AR 24 B] R SR 7 B8 K Bfe iz ARV EL b M BR AT XV K 2 B B H AR
MAEATZROBHEHTEESIRHEMRNIXN R - -FFAANAZ
ERITRHZ210% °

TAERBH  BETYIRRT 2RO EHN23,100,000R K H (BFERH
BERRBITEZHENAF R 27,700,000 K1%)  HETARFAERTR
K7.69% °

(V) BRSEALHRRARMRN LR

THRA+TZANAHERTERBEITVURAQTEMEMBRRIT LR L ZHR
(BEETHE EEHIARTEE)ABUARACRTRAEART 2RO EH
TEBYAZARARBERNEAQRAERTREAZ1% °

BEERFFBIF/ATESREBIALALFE L TRA0.1% RNERBT
5,000,000 T 2 HIM - BAEBARABRE 2t o
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24.Share-based employee compensation (cont’d)
(v) Share Option period

If the Grantee is an Employee, there is a minimum period of 12 months
from the date of grant for which an option to purchase the shares granted
to him under the Scheme must be held before it can be exercised.
For other Grantees, unless the Option Scheme Committee otherwise
determined and are stated in the offer of grant of Options to a Grantee,
there is no minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period of 36 months
which period may commence from the date of grant or 12 months after
the date of grant (as the case may be) but shall not end on the date
being 36 months from the date of grant. However, if the Grantee is an
Employee, he/she is subject to his/her continued employment on the date
of exercise of option.

(vi) Acceptance and payment on acceptance

An offer of the grant of an Option shall remain open for acceptance by
the Grantee concerned for a period of 28 days from the date of grant. A
payment of HK$10 as consideration is payable by the grantee within 28
days from the date of offer.

(vii) Exercise price

The exercise price of unit purchase price of the Share Options granted
to an Eligible Participant under the Scheme shall be calculated on
the basis of the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant or the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Hong Kong Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant, which must be a business day (as the case may be).

WREANER  RETUFRETFHERG ZIRESABE =B (A5
HEBE) FAGE  REREBEARS  BEBRIUNERAL2EREHT
BRUBARBARBBRAHE  BUFTEBR2HBALTHE - REEH
e

MERTTRHAHLIAIRHABAFT=ARMBERAAE) U=+ ATAR
T A MAXANERR  HATTEAANHERRE -

(Vi) B EZHNEBE AR

REBMzEZUMAEREOEARAEL - FHETHAHEIT28R RRBRER
ABEZ - EABRATTEUAHE28ENZF10BTENRYN » REZABRN
TRz & S -

(vii) T EH

BETNRTFEARSEATZHRNZTEN 2 L UMERNUREZER LA
BAANELRTHRIAEERNEKATIROD 2 FHRTNHTHE BH (AN
BLR)(ABAME)EBRRAEBARNKARRG 2BHNITE
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24.Share-based employee compensation (cont’d)
(viii) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Board is entitled at any time within 5 years between 9 September
2010 and 8 September 2015 to offer the grant of an option to any eligible
participants.

The fair values of options granted were determined using the Binominal
Option Valuation Model that takes into account factors specific to the
share incentive plans. The following principal assumptions were used in the
valuation:

Share price at date of grant (HK$) REBH (BT
Expected volatility T HA R 1
Expected option life TER 5 R0
Dividend yield % 23 3R
Risk-free interest rate 75 KB Fll =

Fair value at grant (HK$) NFEGET)
Exercise price at date of grant (HK$) R BT E

The underlying expected volatility was determined by reference to historical
data, calculated based on expected life of share options. Expectations of
early exercise were incorporated into the Binomial Option Valuation Model.
No special features pertinent to the options granted were incorporated into
measurement of fair value.

In total, HK$2,047,000 of employee compensation expense has been
recognised in profit or loss for 2011 (2010: nil) the corresponding amount of
which has been credited share option reserve. No liabilities were recognised
due to share-based payment transactions.

A e. bon holdings limited f##MBTRBER L A

2. LR XS 2RI (%)
(viii) 9 BR ALt &) = B 44 HA IR

EZCENTE-SFNANBE=S-AEAA/NBEFNERNBEFAER
BEE5ERHBBRN

BERR 22 FNEA-RAGERRITE
BRREMNITE 2 EZRIR

AEENHBRBRMITHMOEER - LT R

2011

—F——F

0.8

68.231%

3 years

4.187%

0.98%

2,047,000

#MET) 0.814

MERESERERR > WEARNzTBHERHRUE - — XS EEREMR AR
ROTENEN mUBRENHELTE BREMSIEXEE -

2,047,000 B TEF-E——FoBRaxPNR EFAAIRHN (ZE-FF :
) ARAMBIMES  BEAGREUROGIEEZRZMHEFIA o
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25.Reserves

The Group

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 46. The nature and
purpose of the reserve is as follows:

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC rules and regulations, certain
subsidiaries of the Company are required to appropriate certain % of their
profits after tax to the respective statutory reserves. Subject to certain
restrictions as set out in the relevant PRC regulations, this statutory reserve
may be used to reduce any losses incurred or for capitalisation as paid-up
capital of the PRC subsidiary.

The Company

At 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2009 T-FEFEARFE=B=+—H
RT=-ZZNAEHMA—H

Profit for the year F & A

Dividends ’E

At 31 March 2010 and 1 April 2010 T-E-FH5=B=1+—H
EF-2-ZFMA—H

Capitalisation on bonus issue of shares RITAR
Loss for the year FESM
Issue of share options X F 14 B X

Dividends ’RE

At 31 March 2011 F-E-——-5=ZR=+—H

25, &

A&RH
AERREAFEZHETHEHTRINZGENERTI R - EBE2ERRAENT ¢

FEEEE

BHREERAAE  THERIRZLEZHE QAR EEREET ST HBRFAEH
BRANEXREOL - BEEXRE  ZEEHZTHAERNZHEAREMEERZ
S o

RAH
Share Share option Retained

premium reserve earnings Total
R £ )5 4 e B AR A & RE R F &it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THT THE T THET
78,168 - 4,581 82,749

- - 237 237
(10,395) - - (10,395)
67,773 - 4,818 72,591
(6,930) - - (6,930)
- - (1,791) (1,791)

- 2,047 - 2,047
(13,398) - - (13,398)
47,445 2,047 3,027 52,519
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26.Business combinations

26. L& &}

During the year, the Group acquired 100% equity interest of China
Reconstruct Design Limited. Its principal activity is provision of consultation
services in interior design. On 1 April 2010, the acquisition was completed
based on the share transfer agreement. The acquired business contributed
revenues of HK$762,000 and profit after tax of HK$465,000 to the Group for
the period from 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2011.

Last year, the Group acquired 100% equity interest of Shanghai Techpro
Interior Decoration Co., Ltd. Its principal activity is undertaking interior
decoration and project management for property development in the PRC.
On 29 January 2010, the acquisition was completed based on share transfer
agreement.

The Group acquired the subsidiaries to continue the expansion of the Group’s
operation.

MM AEARBHERITEH(EE)ERLFZ100%KN - ZRAAZERLSF
FTHERHERNRIURS - T-E-—FFEA—A  ZWBHUBRRELZ2SA R
B BBz LSm-_E-—FENA-AZ-F——F=ZA=+-BAEXEHAD 3
k762,000 7L} 465,000/ T 2 WA RBRFAEBEER -

EF ARAUMEEBSRERNRMBRLOTZ100%KN - ZARZERLSH
THERHEZEARITREGRS - T-E-—FF-AZ1+1B » ZRBUARNEIL
ZIHATH -

AEABRMBIZEATUREARANLSHFET R

The assets and liabilities arising from
the acquisition are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Property, plant and equipment
Other receivables

Trade and other payables
Provision for tax

Net (liabilities)/assets acquired

A e. bon holdings limited 1 #MBTRBER L 7

2011 2010

—B——F —E-FF

Fair value and Fair value and

acquiree’s acquiree’s

carrying amount  carrying amount

Bxizlyz DFER NFER
RERABHIOT w7z &% w7 2 &
HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT THET

HeRkINEEHE 1 2,804
b~ T ERIER 53 89
H 4t B YR I - 826
R4S I 5% 2 HL At R A9 =R (107) (124)
BINIR & - (17)
(AR) /RN 2T (53) 3,578
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26.Business combinations (cont’d)

Purchase consideration settled in cash
Direct costs related to the acquisition

Total consideration
Cash and cash equivalents acquired

Cash (inflow)/outflow on acquisition of subsidiary

27.Related party transactions

XA BRBRHN 2
Wiz BB A

BAM
Wz RERA

I‘BZ /)Ilr /Z_)tl

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, during the year, the Group had the following

transactions with related parties:

Related party relationship
SEXEALTXZA

Key management personnel,
including directors
TEEEAR(BRES)

A company under common control

by the directors of the Company (Note)
—BARZRTFAQNBES (KE)

Nature of transaction
RZMR

Short-term employee benefits
BEARIREF
Post-employment benefits
BEREBAITY
Share-based payment

BARRAD 32 2 FR

Rental expenses paid to Negotiator Consultants Limited (“NCL”)
i€ X f¥Negotiator Consultants Limited ([NCL])

Note: NCL is a company in which Mr. TSE Sun Fat, Henry, Mr. TSE Sun Po, Tony and Mr. TSE
Hon Kit, Kevin have beneficial interests. The rental expenses paid were in the normal
course of business at terms mutually agreed between the Group and NCL.

26. & & H (&)

ne

SEE

B2Ule 25

21. XEALTR S

2011 2010
g% -5
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHT

- 3,425

- 153

- 3,578

(1) (2,804)

(1) 744

BRTFAMSHRERAGFOREZRS ABN FEASEREALEHTUTR

2 .

ME : BIEEEE

WERZAEE o

2011

—
HK$°000
TR
7,767

72
583

2,220

2010
—E-%F
HK$000
TER
8,710

72

2,220

BHERERGPIREETNCLYRENRS - EABLFTREAKASNCLEHELE
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28.0perating lease commitments

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and
buildings are as follows:

8. 2 EHAARE

TZ2-——F=A=1+-R  ARARBFIIBEZ L RETFLERRMT AR
NzBRERTREHRMT :

The Group REH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT THERT
Within one year —F K 42,108 26,013
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_EZELEN(EBRERRE) 32,474 19,391
74,582 45,404

The Company b /N |

As at 31 March 2011, the Company had no significant operating lease FZE-——F=ZA=Z+—HB ' AR HEEALEHAAB(ZE—FTF . ) °

commitments (2010: Nil).

29.Contingent liabilities
The Company

As at 31 March 2011, the Company had executed corporate guarantees
given to secure general banking facilities granted to the subsidiaries.
Facilities utilised by the subsidiaries amounted to HK$41,181,000 (2010:
HK$60,858,000) as at 31 March 2011.

& e. bon holdings limited H®BTERER L A

29. T AR HLfR
ARH

FZE-——F=A=1t—"H AL ARETHELARMIARTREFEL 2 THE
ReFZE——F=A=+—-H WELAEHEAZRITRELH H41,181,000%
T(=ZB—FF :60,858,000/8 ) °
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30.Financial risk management objectives and policies 0. MENREEENRBE
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade receivables, trade and REFATESRIBEBFENRKS  RAKRREMREART > HEREREERE
other payables, cash and short-term deposits, interest-bearing borrowings BER - EXENLARSRIECENNRBEINRNT - AEAEBEEHREN
and derivative financial instruments. Details of the policies on how to mitigate k1T EAR KBS o HHEE SRR o

the risks from these financial instruments are set out below. The Group’s
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Categories of financial instruments ERMIAEDE
The Group
& H
2011 2010
—g——F —E-%F
HK$’000 HK$°000
THET THRT
Financial assets W &5 % 7=
Loans and receivables DF 30 & 7 IR I
Trade receivables 7 U Tk 7R 102,046 94,686
Bank and cash balances YeRkNEeSHE 43,984 51,918
146,030 146,604
Financial liabilities Tt 55 51 =
Financial liabilities measured DA 48 B 28 181 2 2 W 55 L AR
at amortised costs
Trade and other payables B4 T 3R K H fth B2 45 71 I 59,116 38,942
Interest-bearing borrowings BEHBR 41,181 60,865

100,297 99,807

annual report 2011 —E--FFR A
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30.Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the Group’s income
and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term interest-
bearing borrowings such as bills payable and finance lease arrangements.
Interest-bearing borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. Interest-bearing borrowings issued at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

As at 31 March 2011, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 50
basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group’s profit after tax and accumulated profits by
approximately HK$206,000 (2010: HK$304,000). The 50 basis point increase/
decrease represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the next annual reporting date.

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with most of the sales transactions
settled in Hong Kong dollars. However, foreign currencies are required to
settle the Group’s purchases from overseas suppliers. The Group enters into
derivatives transactions, principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is
to manage currency risks arising from the Group’s operations.

& e. bon holdings limited H®BTERER L A

30. ME MR EE BN RBE (%)

FEK

ATAKAARBEAREERAT  HARANPRAREERER Y THIZAERE
o AREANNENREEHTRAEHEN  NARERERGS % - BEERER
EWHFHNE  GFEEANAESRENEXR - ARERANZONEEFZ - WERA
EX 2 FRRRE o

TZ2-——-FZA=t-H AU EMBHARRERFAZEZBAT BFRRLES
TEF0ERESAEANEFRBRBERARZ T BFIR D B MNL206,0008 7T (=
T—FF :1304,0008%) S0ERNEFHATERARNREEETLHAEEZT —FE
REBNSEARLRE -

SMCRBE

AERATETEBEZ  HABONRZIZUNEDIE BRI EIMAREEK A
MEUERNIT - XAEATEEN  TENEHEMEN  UEEERKAEZ 2L
KBS -
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30.Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank balances and cash,
trade and other receivables. Bank balances and cash are deposited with
banks in which these financial institutions normally have sound credit rating
and the Group considers the credit risk to be insignificant.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is
the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant.

The general credit terms allowed range from 30 to 90 days. As at 31 March
2011, the Group does not hold any collateral from customers and the Group
has a certain concentration of credit risk as 49% (2010: 35%) of the total
trade and other receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer
and 81% (2010: 39%) from the five largest customers of the Group as at 31
March 2011.

Hence, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amounts of bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group has no other financial
assets which carrying significant exposure to credit risk. The Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.

0. MEKEEE IR BUR (%)

ER R
AEAZERARRIZERTERRAS - NRIKRREMNKHRAAER - RITRA
EREFRTAARFERANREFAEAUNNEHARNR IR 2SR -

FEAREXRUARAERENEFRS  MAEXRGERANESAFRETHERIF
et FAEASERRAKLENRANRIKRE R ZFF » WULAKKEH R
BX-

AEREFZERPA-—RNFI0BEWH - FT=FB——F=ZA=+—-8  XEFH
EREEEF 2R MAKABETREZEPFERENR  RERT-F-——F=A
Z+-HBRZREMNBRIAF D E49% R8INKBEAEAGSARAEKREF °

Bt THEREMSRAERT  BESEEARNRARTEERASENY RERAMBN
KHMZKEE  FAEAATHMERATHFERNEANR - FEAATREEM
SBAEAAZERANKR 2 EMWER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

30.Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d) 0. MENREEENREE (&)
Liquidity risk T % & X
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding FEABMAFARITES - RITER > MAER  RERASEHEM -
and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans, and finance
leases.
As at 31 March 2011 and 2010, the remaining contractual maturities of FT-FE——R-ZF-FF=ZA=1t-H AEHERBRALAALSRENBRTELE
the Group’s financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows, are HEzZUSAGEHENT :
summarised below:
The Group
REH
Within In the
Carrying 1 year or In the third to After the
amount on demand second year fifth year fifth years
N E TEHE=%
Tk E{E —FR B-ER ZERER BEENE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET TR TFET FET
As at 31 March 2011 FZE-——%5=ZH=+—H
Trade and other payables R4S T 3% e L Aty B2 45 TR I 59,116 59,116 - - -
Interest-bearing borrowings, unsecured BEEfER 27,648 27,648 - - -
Other bank loan, secured (Note) HEMBEIREZBITET(HE) 13,533 1,275 1,311 4,082 7,439
As at 31 March 2010 F-E-FEF=H=+—H
Trade and other payables A T R H A B A FhIR 38,942 38,942 - - -
Interest-bearing borrowings, unsecured BEER 46,067 46,067 - - -
Other bank loan, secured (Note) Hth B 2 RT R (HE) 14,798 1,273 1,303 4,035 8,743

A e. bon holdings limited H#HTRKRER 2 &
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30.Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
Liquidity risk (cont’d)
Note:

As at 31 March 2011, the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans
amounted to HK$13,533,000 (2010: HK$14,798,000). For term loans subject to repayment on
demand clauses which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis shows the
cash outflow based on the contractual repayment schedule and, separately, the impact to the

0. MENREEBENRBE (&)
R BEEXE (L)
B OE

RORREETENEREEARAZARDUE S LR NS —FRER 2RI F-F——F=A
=+—B AMHAZRTHEFKHF13,533,0008 T (=F—FF 14,798,000 ) it RAEHAZMFH
R BEHEERTEFSTEERNBENERDNER - EBMHE  ZERTARXERBEARMDUFTHTRE
A+ERERE  MZERTRATEFNEKL14,082,000/8 T ©

timing of the cash outflows if the lenders were to invoke unconditional rights to call the loans with
immediate effect. Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the directors do not believe
that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank loans will be repaid in ten years after the
reporting date in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
At that time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount to HK$14,082,000.

Company
PN
Within In the
Carrying 1 year or In the third to After fifth
amount on demand second year fifth year years
TE=F2
K 1 & et s —F K BZER ERFER BFENE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FExT THET THET THET
As at 31 March 2011 F=F——f£=H=+—H
Other payables H At 7% I 35 35 = = =
Due to subsidiaries R4 Bt /& 2 B 2 FRIN 74,245 74,245 - - -
As at 31 March 2010 FZE-FF=A=+—H
Other payables H A R A 5K 74 74 - - -
Due to subsidiaries MATHIE A B 2 : 59,949 59,949 = = =

annual report 2011 —E--FEH# A



Financial guarantee contracts

MEEREN

As at 31 March 2011
Maximum amount

guaranteed

As at 31 March 2010
Maximum amount guaranteed

Fair value

All significant financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

30.Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont’d)
Liquidity risk (cont’d)

F=2--%£=A=+-8
BBHERLM

different from their fair values as at 31 March 2011 and 2010.

ﬁ e. bon holdings limited H®BTERER L A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W E W& M OE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

30. W 55 K. Be

EEAMNREE (%)

R RERE (&)
Company
P NN

Within In the
Guaranteed 1 year or In the third to After fifth
amount on demand second year fifth year years

BN R = TE=52%
HREH —FRK BEZFEW ERFEN EFUE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TER TET T T T
41,181 41,181 - - -
60,858 60,858 - - -

AT

T-ZE——5R-Z-FTF=ZA=1t-HB FELRIAERKEEYNK KEHESA

FEHEERER -
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31.Capital management N.BERERE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are: AEHAEERAZBIRA :
- to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that - REAEHEBEELE  MNMASHIRFEHORKRHEBRZHEKETRIEF
is continued to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other 2

stakeholders;
to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the Group’s risk

XBAEAZRERER R
RYEREER BUAKHZNRERRED o

management capability.

AEARREBR R ERRARLM  ARBHEEB2REARMRRKRER ; T
BPZR2RENAEA AR ZEARTER o ZEA PN F L RPEMERXREBE

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder return, taking into
consideration the future capital requirements of the Group and capital
efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability and projected operating cash
flows. The Group currently has not adopted any formal dividend policy.

AERAURAABLERNERERZMKE - WELETFUAKHABSEREAERUNE
EEUNE - TZE-——FZA=1—-H ' BEEN14%(ZF—FF 1 26%) °

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt to equity ratio. This ratio
is defined and calculated by the Group as total interest-bearing borrowing to
the equity, at 31 March 2011 was 14% compared to 26% at 31 March 2010.

32.Comparative figures 2. LBHF

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current ETHBRBFZCETH L UHAAEEZE2H AR o

period’s presentation.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMAR
IEMSREE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F=A=+-BLEE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—B-—F —E-%F —EThEF —ET)\F —ETLEF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TER THT THET FET THT
(restated) (restated)
(E75) (&%)

Results Al %%
Profit attributable to shareholders IR AR B &5 i A 17,498 44,231 22,108 37,813 25,779
Assets and liabilities BERAG
Total assets SR FE 396,082 344,842 278,618 298,502 233,154
Total liabilities B (107,622) (108,563) (82,785) (115,153) (74,827)
Shareholders’ funds BEREE 288,460 236,279 195,833 183,349 158,327
The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the five years ended 31 HEZFE——F=A=+—-HLEENFERAZLSG BFERARDERGEEEMmE

March 2011 have been prepared on a consolidated basis.

e. bon holdings limited W®BTERER L A
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